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CHANDIGARH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED - PROFILE

Chandigarh Airport is a 24X7 operational civil enclave and is managed by Chandigarh International Airport
Limited (CHIAL). CHIAL is a company incorporated under Companies Act, 2013 on 28.01.2010 wherein
Airports Authority of India (AAl) is having equity stake of 51% and remaining equity stake equally held at
24.5% each by Punjab Government through Greater Mohali Area Development Authority (GMADA) and by
Haryana Government through Haryana Shehri Vikas Pradhikaran (HSVP).

The runway length is 10400 ft. which is capable of handling wide body Aircrafts. CAT Il facilities by IAF are
available on one end of the runway and on the other end, CAT | ILS system is available provided by AAI.
CHIAL is regulated by AERA and is classified as Major Airport as per AERA Act, 2008 w.e.f. 22.06.2016.

The New Civil Air Terminal has been established with distinct green building features on a land area of 300
Acres (approx.). The new International Airport is operational from October 19, 2015.

The modern Integrated Terminal Building is made of glass and steel structure and is equipped with the
modern state-of-the-art equipment and passenger facilities. Local Art & Culture of Punjab & Haryana State
and the Union Territory, Chandigarh is depicted in the terminal building through murals & paintings.

The Airport Echo building has been layered with awe-inspiring interiors. The blend of sophisticated artifacts
and lush green landscaping provide it with a splendid touch to the airport premises. Also, to ensure that the
airport matches up the parameters of being an eco- friendly premises, all such measures are taken
earnestly by the team. Horticulture and landscape features developed on around 12 acres of land, creates
pleasant environment at Airport.

CHIAL's strategy, driven by its mission and vision, focuses on honoring and respecting its core values while
delivering major overreaching goal of increasing passenger numbers. Currently, the airport's total passenger
countincludes both business and leisure travelers.
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Vision Statement

GOAL

To strengthen
Chandigarh International
Airport as the leading
aviation hub and key
engine for economic
growth of the region

4mn annual enplaned
and deplanes
passengers by 2022

CHIAL’s commitment to sustainability is characterized in a corporate core value, committed to a responsibly
managing all its assets to advance the regions' environmental stewardship, social well being & economic
prosperity. Chandigarh International Airport is committed to operating and maintaining its facilities in an
environmentally responsible manner and focuses on natural resource conservation and pollution preventions.
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Sewage Treatment Plant (600 KLD) based on extended Aeration Technology
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F“ Organic Waste Convertor Machine

In the view to make the airport environmental friendly, a 3 MWp solar power plant was installed at the
premises in October 2016, which has enabled the Airport to function completely on solar power during the
day time.

All the light fittings in the terminal building have been replaced with energy saving LED light that has
reduced electricity consumption, thereby adding to the national wealth.
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OPERATIONAL FACILITIES

NEW ADDITIONS DURING THE YEAR 2020-21

REVAMPED APRON AREA - New Apron has been
recently completed in order to park more number of
aircrafts in stands and to provide night parking etc. to
code 4C type of aircrafts. Now a total of 23 aircrafts
can be parked at any given time at Chandigarh

International Airport. This is the first time when |
Innovative Paver System blocks have been used at
airport in India for construction of Apron. The blocks |
are more flexible and there will be fewer cracks
compared to cement pavement. There will be big
capacity addition in Aircraft parking from 09 to 23 bays.
22 bays are for CODE-C (B737, A320 etc.) and one
bay for Code-E aircrafts. These new parking stands
had been made operational since Dec-2020.

ADDITION OF NEW PASSENGER BOARDING
BRIDGES (PBB’S) - Two (02) nos. of PBB’s has been
commissioned which has increased the no. of PBB’s to
Five (05).

IN-LINE X-RAY BAGGAGE SCREENING SYSTEM
(ILBS) — ILBS was made operational w.e.f 10.12.2020.
The newly installed ILBS aids in reducing the time
taken for baggage screening & will eliminate the need
to stand in registered baggage que. It is cost saving for
airlines too, as the deployment of staff at X-ray
machine is no longer needed.
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SOUTHERN PARALLEL TAXI TRACK - The
Southern Taxi Track with 907 mtr length and 23 mtr
width & 15 mtrs shoulders has been completed. The
taxi link will allow aircraft to vacate runway faster,
permitting other aircraft to land or takeoff in short
duration.

INTEGRATED CARGO COMPLEX - To enhance cargo
operations from CHIAL, set up of new cargo complex is
under construction and is likely to be operational soon
which will enhance the capacity of existing Domestic
cargo complex and also includes facility of International
cargo with the arrangement of storage of perishable
cargo. Total area of new cargo complex is 14127sgm
(Built up area — 2396 sqm, Paved Area — 7253 sgm &
Green Area — 4478 sqm). The cargo complex will be
equipped with all the latest equipment’s viz. reefer van
Forklifts, scissor lift, pallets, user friendly weighing scale,
trolleys etc. for smooth functioning. This will help boost
the cargo in the Region.

SETTING UP OF APHO: Airport Health Organisation
functioning at Chandigarh Airport started from 24th
Feb, 2021. APHO ensures implementation of
International Health Regulation, International Sanitary
regulation & Indian Aircraft (Public Health) rules. The
organisation plays a significant role in mitigation of
risks due to a number of dangerous diseases like
Yellow Fever, Ebola fever, Swine flu, SARS etc. In the
past also the roles played by APHOs & PHOs in
preventing international spread of Plague (1994),
SARS (2003) is well known.

AMPLE AIRCRAFT/NIGHT PARKING SPACE: Chandigarh International Airport has now ample parking / night
parking space for aircrafts as it has recently completed construction of additional bays reaching the total figure
available for parking bays to 23 nos. With this, scheduled airline have an added advantage of night parking.

. o s
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> PROUD RECIPIENT OF ACI-ASQ AWARDS:3rd time in a row, Chandigarh International Airport
Limited has been adjudged as the 'Best Airport bySize & Region' in Asia-Pacific region for 2020, in
the category of 2-5 Million Pax Per Annum. Chandigarh also won award for “Best Hygiene Measures
by Region”. We bagged the top position in Best Hygiene Measures category in Asia-Pacific Region.
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> PROUD RECIPIENT OF ACI-ASQ AWARDS: 3rd time in a
row, Chandigarh International Airport Limited has been
adjudged as the 'Best Airport bySize & Region' in Asia-
Pacific region for 2020, in the category of 2-5 Million Pax Per
Annum. Chandigarh also won award for “Best Hygiene
Measures by Region”. We bagged the top position in Best
Hygiene Measures category in Asia-Pacific Region.

> SWACHHATAAWARDS:

« Forthe year 2019, won award for2nd cleanest and safest
airport of AAI.

« Ranked 1st position for “Clean & Safe Airport” Award
out of 22 AAI Airports conducted by Quality Council
Inspection team.

« Won First in INDIA Swachhta Award presented by AAl

forthe year2018-19.




" ANNUAL REPORT 2020:81 ——

- Certified with a Four Star Rating Under
GRIHA.

- CIDC (Construction Industry Development
Council) Award for Best Construction.

- SKOCH Award for Energy Conversation,
Environment Conservation, Skill
Development, Employment Generation,
Financial Growth of Region and Completion
without Time and Cost Over Run.

- IBC Award for Excellence in Built
Environment 2014-15 for “New Integrated
Terminal Building of Chandigarh
International Airport”.

- Network 18 and Honeywell Smart building
Awards, 2016 & 2017.

- Award for Completion of Project without
Time and Cost Over Run by AAI.

SK-HCH
AWARDS

- Chandigarh International Airport received
award for rank number one in Customer
Satisfaction Index Survey 2016 in the
segment of similar category of Airports

conducted by Airports Council International.
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CHIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Representatives of Airports Authority of India

Sh. Narasimha Murthy Indrakanti,
Member (Operations),
AAl & Chairman, CHIAL

Sh. Sanjay Jain,
ED (Commercial), AAI &
Nominee Director, CHIAL

Sh. M.N.N. Rao, Sh. D.K. Kamra, Sh. Joyanta Chakraborty,
ED (Engg.), AAI & RED (NR), AAI & Director, MoCA &
Nominee Director, CHIAL Nominee Director, CHIAL Nominee Director, CHIAL

Representatives of Punjab Government
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Sh. Tejveer Singh, IAS Sh. Pradeep Kumar Agrawal, IAS
Nominee Director, CHIAL Nominee Director, CHIAL

Sh. Sudhir Rajpal, IAS Sh. Ajit Balaji Joshi, IAS
Nominee Director, CHIAL Nominee Director, CHIAL
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

as on March, 31, 2021

‘ | |
Sh. Ajay Kumar, Sh. Rakesh Dembla, Mrs. Avneet Kaur,
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

REFERENGE INFORMATION

Registered Office : Room no.1, Project Office Building, Airport Authority of India,
Civil Airport, Chandigarh-160003

Corporate Office : New Civil Air Terminal, Village Jhurheri, Mohali (Punjab)-160004
Tel No.: 0172-2242002, Fax No.: 0172-2242003
E-mail id - secretary.chial@rediffmail.com
CIN U63013CH2010G0I1031999
Bankers : - State Bank of India, Chandigarh
- HDFC Bank, Chandigarh
- Yes Bank, Chandigarh
Statutory Auditors : M/s. Balwinder Associates, Nawanshahr, Punjab
Internal Auditors : M/s. Navneet & Company, Chandigarh

Cost Auditors : M/s. R. M. Bansal & Company, Kanpur
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Operational Highlights

PAX PER YEAR
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Covid — 19 is the most significant crisis that Indian aviation has ever faced, affecting passenger traffic, cargo and
revenues at large. The industry has been among the worst hit by the pandemic with many airlines forced to
suspend or close its operations, upsetting supply chains globally and lost millions of jobs. India’s domestic
passenger throughput slipped to a 10 year low in the financial year 2020-21. However, CHIAL was able to gain
the growth in PAX throughput from November, 20 onwards. Passenger throughput for F.Y. 2020-21 has
decreased by 43.50% in comparison to all Indian airports taken together which has resulted in decrease in
Passenger throughput by 60%.
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CHIAL is connected to 16 Domestic destinations & 1 International destination:

Domestic Destinations - Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Delhi, Dharmshala, Goa, Hyderabad, Jaipur, Kullu, Kolkata,
Leh, Lucknow, Mumbai, Patna, Pune, Shimla, Srinagar

International Destination - Sharjah
Soon, Chandigarh Airport will connect with new destinations like Indore, Jodhpur, Jammu & Dehradun and

reconnect with Nanded again. Apart from this, Chandigarh airport will also increase the flights for the frequently
sought-after cities by passengers’ viz. Ahmedabad, Bangalore, Delhi, Goa, and Mumbai.

AlIR-INDIA
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Revenue from operations 6,715.75 10,954.52
Other income 1,149.82 1,099.00
Total Income 7,865.57 12,053.52
Expenses 2,600.31 4,065.01
Profit/(Loss) before Deprecation 5,265.26 7,988.51
Less: Deprecation 3,062.84 3,371.49
Profit/(Loss) after Deprecation but before Tax 2,202.42 4,617.02
Less: Tax Expense 725.90 1,297.69
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 1,476.53 3,319.33

COMPOSITION OF REVENUE COMPOSITION OF EXPENDITURE

B Employee Benefit

Expenses
W Aeronautical

Airport Services

B Non - Aeronautical B Other Expenses

Airport Services

W Cargo

m Depreciation and
Amortization
expenses

In view of global pandemic—COVID-19, the Govt. of India (Gol) has taken various preventive measures
including a lockdown all over the country to curb the further outspread of disease. Accordingly, operation of
scheduled and non-scheduled commercial airlines were closed at Chandigarh Airport w.e.f. 25.03.2020 and
continued till 24.05.2020. As per DGCA order, Airport Operations were resumed for Domestic flights w.e.f.
25.05.2020 with certain restrictions.

Restriction on flight movement has resulted in reduction in Aircraft movement as well as Passenger throughput
resulting in lower revenue generation to CHIAL as well as other stakeholders. Revenue from the operations of
the company in the subsequent year may also be significantly affected due to the COVID-19. Further,
Commercial revenue has also gone down because some of the concessionaires have left out.

. o 0000
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

| am delighted to welcome you all to the 11th Annual General Meeting of CHIAL. The Audited Annual
Accounts for financial year ending March 31, 2021 along with the Auditor's report, C&AG Report and
Directors' Report of your Company are with you and with your permission, | take them as read.

Covid — 19 is the most significant crisis that Indian aviation has ever faced, affecting passenger traffic, cargo
and revenues at large. The industry has been among the worst hit by the pandemic with many airlines forced
to suspend or close its operations, upsetting supply chains globally and lost millions of jobs. India's domestic
passenger traffic slipped to a 10 year low in the financial year 2020-21.

During the period April 2020 to March 2021, all Indian airports taken together handled 11.89 lakhs aircrafts
movements (excluding General Aviation Movements) and 1155.10 lakh passengers. Had 2020 been a
normal year, it would have seen more than 40 million commercial flights take to the skies carrying more than
4.7 billion passengers.

Due to the on-going Covid-19 pandemic, Government has to impose several restrictions on activities
including movement of persons from one location to another in view of public safey. Even though, there were
restrictions on the operation of domestic aircraft, further, second wave of the pandemic has badly hit India
and its aviation sector. Inspite of all constraints, the performance of CHIAL is significant and we are at better
position from all airport operators in the country.

| take this opportunity to share my views on the present performance of the Company:

ACHIEVEMENTS

> Chandigarh International Airport Limited (CHIAL) is proud winner of ACI AWARD, 2020 - TWO Airport
Service Quality awards conferred by Airport Council International (ACI) World in 2 to 5 million passenger per
year category in Asia Pacific Region as listed below:

 BestAirport by size and region

» Besthygiene measures by region
> CHIAL has achieved an overall satisfaction score of 4.99 for the year 2020 in the ACI Airport Service
Quality passenger survey (ASQ).

PASSENGER THROUGHPUT

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic and restrictions on the operation of domestic aircraft, Passenger throughput
for current year is 1.38 millions against 2.45 millions during the year 2019-20 resulting in decrease by 41%.
However, all Indian airports taken together have resulted in decrease in Passenger throughput by 60%.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

> The financial year 2020 - 21 had begun under the influence of the pervasive virus in the world.
The total revenue for the year ended 31.03.2021 was Rs. 78.65 Crores as against Rs. 120.53 Crores
during the year 2019-20 resulting in decrease in revenue by 34.75% over previous year.

— ©
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> The Company has reported a profit after tax of Rs. 14.77 Crores for the current year (i.e. F.Y.
2020-21) against Rs. 33.19 profit after tax during the year 2019-20 with a downfall of 55.50%.

FLIGHT OPERATIONS

> Facilitated commencement of Domestic flights operations from Chandigarh International Airport to
new Domestic destinations like Goa, Lucknow, Ahemdabad and Kolkatta. Soon we will be connected to
destinations Jammu & Nanded.

> M/s Aviation Connectivity & Infrastructure Developers Pvt. Ltd. has started operating its Air taxi at
CHIAL from Chandigarh to Hisar. India's first small aircraft air taxi service was inaugurated by Haryana Chief
Minister, Shri Manohar Lal Khattar on 14th January, 2021

> Incentive Scheme for Airlines on Domestic & International route has been introduced to encourage
airlines to serve new routes/unserved routes from Chandigarh Airport in order to arrest lean operations as
well as to address revenue loss to CHIAL due to Covid-19 situation and to boost new connections.

> Facilitated movement of Vande Bharat and Evacuation flights for repatriation of Indians stuck
overseas.

OPERATIONAL FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT

> REVAMPED APRON AREA - Construction of New Apron completed along with 14 additional
parking bays which has increased the no. of Parking bays at CHIAL to 23 (9 present and 14 additional
parking bays). 22 bays are for CODE-C (B737, A320 etc.) and one bay for Code-E aircrafts. These new
parking stands had been made operational since Dec-2020.

> ADDITION OF NEW PASSENGER BOARDING BRIDGES (PBB'S) - Two (02) nos. of PBB's has
been commissioned which has increased the no. of PBB's to Five (05).

> IN-LINE X- RAY BAGGAGE SCREENING SYSTEM (ILBS) — ILBS was made operational w.e.f
10.12.2020. This will save precious time of passengers as they do not have to queue up near the x-ray
machines to scan their baggage before check-in.

> SOUTHERN PARALLEL TAXI TRACK - The Southern Taxi Track with 907 mtr length and 23 mtr
width & 15 mtrs shoulders has been completed. The PQC work of taxi has been done with fully
mechanised slip form paver.

> INTEGRATED CARGO COMPLEX - To enhance cargo operations from CHIAL, set up of new
cargo facility is under construction which will enhance the capacity of cargo complex including facility of
International cargo with the arrangement of storage of perishable cargo. Total area of new cargo
complex is 14127sgm (Built up area — 2396 sqm, Paved Area — 7253 sqm & Green Area — 4478 sqm).
The new cargo complex is likely to be operational soon subject to clearance from Customs and security
agencies.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Your Company has Corporate Social Responsibility high on its agenda and is carrying out various
activities which are aimed at improving the quality of life of the peripheral area and neighborhood
community. During the year 2020-21, Rs. 65.67 lakhs was spent wherein Ambulance has been provided
to civil hospitals namely:

— ©
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Nuh (Aspirational District)
Firozpur (Aspirational District)
Moga (Aspirational District)
Mohali (Nearby area)

Ambala (Nearby area)

aobRwWON~

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

I am pleased to inform you that your Company has complied with the Corporate Governance norms as
stipulated by the Central Government through the guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises
and your Company is taking all efforts to adopt the best Corporate Governance practices.

Chandigarh International Airport has got excellent rating in compliance with Guidelines on Corporate
Governance for the year 2019-20 being acknowledged by Department of Public Enterprises on 2nd
December, 2020.

CONCLUSION

Before concluding, | wish to place on record deep appreciation for the hard work, dedication,
commitment and solidarity put in by employees of CHIAL at all levels which resulted in record improved
performance during the year.

I would also like to thank my colleagues on the Board, who spared considerable time and participated
actively in the deliberations of the Board with their in depth knowledge and guidance on various issues
which greatly contributed in taking appropriate decisions.

| wish to convey my sincere thanks to Government of Punjab, Government of Haryana, Indian Air Force,
Ministry of Civil Aviation, Ministry of Defense, Airports Authority of India, Government of Union territory
Chandigarh, Custom, Immigration, CISF, Airlines, Bankers and other Stakeholders for their help,
guidance and support.

Lastly, | am very grateful to our most important stakeholders, the Passengers for having faith and
confidence by undertaking air travel in large numbers through Chandigarh Airport which is a testimony to
the efforts taken by CHIAL Management to make the airport very safe & secure.

Wishing you all a very happy Diwali.

Jai Hind.
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 11" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Chandigarh
International Airport Limited will be held on Thursday, 28" October, 2021 at 11.00 A.M. through Video
Conferencing to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31t March 2021, Statement of
Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended on that date together with the
Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors of the Company.

To confirm the interim dividend @ 1.5% i.e. Rs. 0.15 per share on 96,94,49,405 equity shares of the
Company and consider the same as final dividend for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021.

To take note of the appointment of M/s Balwinder Associates, Chartered Accountants, Chandigarh Road,
Nawanshahr, Punjab as Statutory Auditors of the Company and to ratify their appointment, remuneration &
to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“‘RESOLVED that appointment of M/s. Balwinder Associates, Chartered Accountants, Chandigarh Road,
Nawanshahr, Punjab (Firm Registration No. 014822N) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
financial year 2021-22 in terms of the letter issued by Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) vide
letter no. CA. V/ICOY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT,CIAL(0)/313 dated 19.08.2021 be and is hereby noted.
The remuneration as approved by CAG for the payment of Statutory Audit will be Rs. 100,000/- plus GST
(as applicable) per annum.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary
Resolution:

“‘RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended, M/s R. M.
Bansal & Company, Cost Accountants, Kanpur appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, to
conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2022, be paid the
remuneration of Rs. 75,000/- plus GST per annum, be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.”

By Order of the Board
For Chandigarh International Airport Limited

Place: Mohali Sd/-
Date: 26.10.2021 Company Secretary
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NOTES

1.

The Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act 2013, in respect of the Special business
set out in the notice is annexed hereto.

. In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has vide letter

dated 13th January 2021 which is in continuation with the letter dated 05th May 2020 read with circulars
dated 08th April 2020 and 13th April 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the
holding of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the
Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and MCA
Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of himself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since this
AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, the physical attendance of
members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members
will not be available for the AGM.

. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, the Notice of the AGM is being sent only through

electronic mode to those members whose email addresses are registered with the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held on 17" June, 2021 declared an Interim
Dividend @ 1.5% i.e. Rs. 0.15 per share on 96,94,49,405 equity shares of the Company for the financial
year 2020-21 to those equity share holders whose names appear in the Register of Members of the
Company as on 23.06.2021. The Board considered and approved the Interim Dividend paid to the
members as full and final dividend for the financial year 2020-21.

Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map, proxy form and attendance slip are not

annexed to this Notice of the AGM.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 4

The Board of Directors of the Company have appointed M/s R. M. Bansal & Company, Cost Accountants,
Kanpur as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2021 - 22 and approved the remuneration
payable to them.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, the remuneration payable to the cost auditor should be ratified by the
members of the company.

Hence, the Board recommends the resolution no. 4 for ratification of the members of the Company.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

By Order of the Board
For Chandigarh International Airport Limited

Place: Mohali Sd/-
Date: 26.10.2021 Company Secretary
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Eleventh Annual Report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2021.

Your Directors take immense pride to report that Chandigarh International Airport Limited (CHIAL) is the
proud recipient of a 2020 Two Airport Service Quality (ASQ) Awards conferred by Airport Council
International (ACI) World in 2 to 5 million passenger category in Asia Pacific Region for:

(a) Best Airport by Size & Region,

(b) Best Hygiene measures by Size.

FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE COMPANY

(Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

Revenue from operations 6,715.75 10,954.52
Other Income 1,149.82 1,099.00
Total Income 7,865.57 12,053.52
Expenses 2,600.31 4,065.01
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation 5,265.26 7,988.51
Less: Depreciation 3,062.84 3,371.49
Profit/(Loss) after Depreciation but Before Tax 2,202.42 4,617.02
Less: Tax Expense 725.90 1,297.69
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 1,476.53 3,319.33
Balance brought forward 3,895.78 576.45
Balance carried forward 5,372.31 3,895.78

AVIATION SCENARIO IN INDIA

Covid — 19 is the most significant crisis that Indian aviation has ever faced, affecting passenger traffic,
cargo and revenues at large. The industry has been among the worst hit by the pandemic with many
airlines forced to suspend or close its operations, upsetting supply chains globally and lost millions of jobs.
India’s domestic passenger traffic slipped to a 10 year low in the financial year 2020-21.

The second wave of Covid pandemic has severely affected the Airport operations in India. Ministry of Civil
Aviation has taken lot of initiatives such as bringing more than 150 tonnes of Covid related medical supplies
including oxygen concentrators and ventilators from different parts of the world, transportation of vaccine
(Domestic + International) has been facilitated, the Empowered Group of MoCA is exploring the possibilities
of re-commencing the incoming international flights, etc.

During the period April 2020 to March 2021, all Indian airports taken together handled 11.89 lakhs aircrafts
movements (excluding General Aviation Movements) and 1155.10 lakh passengers. Had 2020

been a normal year, it would have seen more than 40 million commercial flights take to the skies carrying
more than 4.7 billion passengers.

Due to the on-going Covid-19 pandemic, Government has imposed several restrictions on activities
including movement of persons from one location to another. Even though, there were restrictions on the
operation of domestic aircraft, further, second wave of the pandemic has badly hit India and its aviation
sector, however, the performance of CHIAL is significant.

©
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2. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

(a) Financial overview:
During the year under review, the operation of your Company was severely affected by the spread of Covid
— 19 pandemic. The financial year 2020 - 21 had begun under the influence of the pervasive virus in the
world. The total revenue for the year ended 31.03.2021 was Rs. 78.65 Crores as against Rs. 120.53 Crores
during the year 2019-20 resulting in decrease in revenue by 34.75% over previous year.

The Company has reported a profit after tax of Rs. 14.77 Crores for the current year (i.e. F.Y. 2020-21)
against Rs. 33.19 Crores during the year 2019-20 with a downfall of 55.50%.

Your company has contributed an amount of Rs. 7.25 Crores towards taxes and GST amounting to Rs.
3.07 Crores during F.Y. 2020-21.

The above financial performance is exceptional among Airport operators.
(b) Aircraft Movements and Passenger Throughput

The Covid -19 pandemic is an evolving human tragedy declared a global pandemic by the World Health
Organisation having adverse impact on economy and business. In view of global pandemic — COVID 19,
the Govt. of India (GOI) has taken various measures including lockdown all over the country and
suspension of all operations of the airport except few rescue flight operations to curb the further outspread
of disease. Accordingly, operation of scheduled and non-scheduled commercial airlines were closed at
Chandigarh Airport w.e.f. 25.03.2020 to 24.05.2020.

In May 2020, the Indian government introduced the Vande Bharat Mission to bring back stranded Indians
from abroad. The country has a bilateral air bubble arrangement with 28 nations currently for flying special
international passenger flights. The Directorate General of Civil Aviation (DGCA) in India has extended the
ban on scheduled international passenger flights till 315 October, 2021 as the country battles to contain the
second wave of the Covid-19 pandemic.

The details of Passenger throughput and Aircraft movements (Domestic & International) for the financial
year 2020 - 21 as compared to previous year is presented below:

PASSENGER THROUGHPUT (in numbers)

Year Domestic International Total
2020-21 13,70,389 11,245 13,81,634
2019-20 23,23,707 1,21,495 24,45,202
Increase/(Decrease) in Nos. (9,53,318) (1,10,250) (10,63,568)
Increase/(Decrease) in % (41) (90.75) (43.50)
AIRCRAFT MOVEMENTS (in numbers)
Year Domestic International Total
2020-21 12,786 98 12,884
2019-20 17,527 794 18,321
Increase/(Decrease) in Nos. (4,741) (696) (5,437)
Increase/(Decrease) in % (27.05) (87.66) (29.67)

©
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CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There is no change in the nature of the business of the company.

. DIVIDEND

Though Aviation sector has been hit badly by the pandemic, your company is able to earn profit after tax of
Rs. 14.77 Crores. Pursuant to the approval of the Board on 17" June 2021, your Company paid an Interim
dividend @1.5% i.e. Rs. 0.15 per share on 96,94,49,405 equity shares of the Company to be paid out of the
profits of the Company for the year ended 31.03.2021 after deduction of tax at source, to those equity share
holders whose names appear in the Register of Members of the Company as on 23.06.2021, being the
record date fixed for this purpose. The amount of Interim dividend paid is Rs. 14,54,17,410/-.

The interim dividend @1.5% i.e. Rs. 0.15 per equity share declared by the Board in June 2021 shall be the
final dividend for the financial year 2020-21.

. RESERVES

During the year, the Company general reserve has been increasing by Rs. 14.77 Crores due to Profit after
Tax.

. SHARE CAPITAL

The Paid Up Capital as on 31t March, 2021 was Rs. 969,44,94,050/ (Rupees Nine Hundred Sixty Nine
Crores Forty Four Lakhs Ninety Four Thousand and Fifty Only) comprises of 96,94,49,405 (Ninety Six
Crores Ninety Four Lakhs Forty Nine Thousand Four Hundred and Five) equity shares of face value of Rs.
10/- (Rupees Ten) each . During the year under review, the Company had not issued shares with
differential voting rights nor granted Stock Options nor Sweat Equity nor Bonus Shares. Also, the Company
has not increased its Share Capital and has not Buy Back its Securities.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

APPOINTMENTS
During the year, following Nominee Directors were appointed:

S. No. | Name Date of Appointment
1. Sh. D.K. Kamra 18.08.2020
2. Sh. Pradeep Kumar Agrawal, IAS 18.08.2020
3. Sh. Joyanta Chakraborty, IRSEE 03.03.2021
4, Sh. Sanjay Jain 16.03.2021
5. Sh. Ajit Balaji Joshi, IAS 18.03.2021
6. Sh. Sudhir Rajpal, IAS 26.03.2021

RESIGNATIONS

During the year, following Nominee Directors resigned:

S. No. | Name Date of Resignation
1. Sh. Rakesh Kalra 18.08.2020
2. Sh. Venkatramana Ramachandra Hegde 18.08.2020
3. Smt. Kavita Singh, IAS 18.08.2020
4, Sh. Vineet Gulati 16.03.2021
5. Sh. Vinay Singh Yadav, IAS 18.03.2021
6. Sh. A.K. Singh, IAS 26.03.2021
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Other than the above, there were no changes in the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Person (KMP)
during the financial year 2020 — 21.

MEETINGS

Four meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the period under review on 18.08.2020,
29.10.2020, 24.12.2020 and 16.02.2021. During the Covid period, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has
approved that the gap between two consecutive meetings of the Board may be 180 days upto 30.09.2020.
Your Company has complied with the timelines approved by the MCA and for the balance period, the
intervening gap between the meetings was within the period of 120 days as prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Companies during the year under
review.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Being a Government Company status, the Statutory Auditors of your Company are appointed by
Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG). M/s Balwinder Associates, Chartered Accountants,
Nawanshahr was appointed vide C&AG letter No./CA. V/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT,CIAL(0)/320
dated 17.08.2020 as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2020-21. The Statutory
Auditors of the Company is being paid an audit fee of Rs. 1,00,000/- plus GST per annum as directed by
CAG and thereafter approval by CHIAL Board.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or remarks. The notes to Accounts and
Auditors remarks in their report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL (CAG) REPORT

The comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General (CAG) of India, through letter No.
GAP/AAI/CHIAL/Annual A/c/6-72/21-22/176 dated 14.10.2021 on the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31.03.2021 under the Companies Act, 2013 has been received. CAG
have offered NIL comments on the report.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Board of Directors of your Company has appointed M/s Navneet & Company, Chartered Accountants,
Chandigarh as Internal Auditors, pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 for
the financial year 2020-21.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. The
company has adopted policies and procedures including the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
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conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of fraud and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and
the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013. The internal audit

team of the company carries out extensive audits quarterly across all functional areas and submit its report.
Based on the report of the internal auditor, the process owners undertake corrective action in their

respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls.

COST AUDITOR

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of your Company had
appointed M/s. R.M. Bansal & Company, Cost Accountants, Kanpur as Cost Auditors for the financial year
2020-21 for conducting the audit of cost records of your company in respect to

Aeronautical Services as applicable under CETA (Central Excise Tariff Act) heading covered under non-
regulated services sector.

M/s. R.M. Bansal & Company has submitted the cost audit report for the financial year 2020-21. There are
no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the cost audit report for the financial year 2020-21.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment
& Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Your Company recognizes that effective management of risks associated with the business is a
fundamental requirement to its continued profitability and long term sustainability. The Company has
adequate system of business risk evaluation and management to ensure sustainable business growth and
to promote pro-active approach in evaluating and resolving the risks associated with the business. The
Company has identified the potential risks such as financial risk, legal & statutory risk and the internal
process risk and has put in place appropriate measures for its mitigation.

CHIAL has taken third party liability insurance policy covering legal liability arising out of their Aircraft
operators activities only which include the use of Passenger Boarding Bridges.

As of now, no much risk regarding sustainability of operations for further one year is being identified.
Business risk is not considered as potential risk. Runway is also being managed by Air Force and watch
hours are also been decided by the Air Force. At present, the Company has not identified any element of
risk which may threaten the existence of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of
your company constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee to monitor the CSR activities.

@
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The Company understands its responsibility towards the society and environment in which it operates.
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities of the Company for the F.Y. 2020-21 is
annexed as Annexure - | to this report.

During the financial year, Two (2) CSR Committee Meetings were convened and held on 24.12.2020 and
26.03.2021.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return as on 31t March, 2021 in the
prescribed Form MGT 9 is annexed as Annexure - |l to this report.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company is not required to appoint Independent Directors under Section 149(4) and Rule 4 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. Hence, no declaration is required.

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION

AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are
not applicable to the Company and hence, the company has not devised any policy relating to appointment
of directors, payment of managerial remuneration, directors qualification, positive attributes, independence
of directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 178(5) relating to constitution of Stakeholders Relationship Committee are not
applicable to the Company and hence, the Company has not constituted such committee.

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

The significant events occurred between the end of the current financial year i.e. 2020-21 of the Company
to which financial statements relate and the date of the report has been shown under disclosures to
Balance Sheet wherein except Covid-19, no other significant changes has impacted the financial position of
the company.

The COVID-19 pandemic is an evolving human tragedy declared a global pandemic by the World Health
Organisation with adverse impact on economy and business. In view of global pandemic—COVID-19, the
Govt. of India (Gol) has taken various preventive measures including a lockdown all over the country to
curb the further outspread of disease. In pursuance to the instruction of Gol, DGCA vide circular no.
4/1/2020-IR dated 23.03.2020, conveyed for closure of commercial operations at all airports except cargo,
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medical and relief flights. Accordingly, operations of scheduled and non-scheduled commercial airlines
were closed at Chandigarh Airport w.e.f. 25.03.2020 to 24.05.2020. As per DGCA order, Airport Operations
were resumed for Domestic flights w.e.f. 25.05.2020 with certain restrictions. DGCA has also extended the
ban on scheduled international passenger flights till 315t October, 2021 as the country battles to contain the
second wave of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Restriction on flight movement has resulted in reduction in Aircraft movement as well as Passenger
throughput resulting in lower revenue generation to CHIAL as well as other stakeholders. Revenue from the
operations of the company in the subsequent year may also be significantly affected due to the COVID-19.

Further, Commercial revenue has also gone down because some of the concessionaires have left out. Due
to low volume of sales by the concessionaires, company has reviewed the impact on its customer
worthiness. Keeping in view the pandemic situation and sustainability of concessionaires at airport, CHIAL
board has rationalized the concessionaire’s license fees and CAM charges and has also considered the
financial stress and business turmoil faced by them and therefore introduced relief scheme for the
concessionaires by giving option for chargeability of license fees/concession fees from fixed license
fee/concession fees to passenger based license fees/concession fees for the balance contract period/ till
the end of contract. This has resulted in financial impact to CHIAL to the tune of Rs. 7.30 crores approx. for
the FY 2020-21. CHIAL Management is of the view to stabilize the business, thereafter the same may be
recovered in near future when pandemic situation normalize.

25. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN
FUTURE

During the year under review, there have been no such significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

26. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Personnel and industrial relations were cordial and satisfactory during the year under review. None of the
employee has received remuneration exceeding the limit set out under Section 197 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014.

27. TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

There is no amount lying for transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund as per the provisions of
Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013.

28. DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any public deposits and as such no amount on account of principal or
interest on public deposits was outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

29. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

During the year under review, the Company has not provided any loan and guarantees and has not made
any investment pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties as referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188
and Ind AS 24 are set out in the Notes forming part of the accounts. These transactions are not likely to
have a conflict with the interest of the company. All the related party transactions are negotiated on arm’s
length basis and are intended to protect the interest of the company.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

Your Company believes that diversity at workplace creates an environment conducive to engagement,
alignment, innovation and high performance. Every employee in the Company is treated with dignity,
respect and afforded equal treatment.

A policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace, in line
with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 is in place. ‘Internal Complaints Committees’ have been constituted for the redressal
of complaint(s) against sexual harassment of women at workplace. All employees (permanent, contractual,
temporary and trainees) are covered under this policy.

No complaints have been received during the financial year 2020-21.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings
and outgo, as required to be disclosed under the Companies Act, 2013, are provided in Annexure - Il to
this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company strongly believes that the spirit of Corporate Governance goes beyond the statutory form.
Sound Corporate Governance is a key driver of sustainable corporate growth and long-term value creation
for the stakeholders including shareholders, employees and customers. Your Company is committed to
maintain the highest level of transparency, accountability and equity in operations. Your company always
strives to follow the path of good Governance through a broad framework of various processes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to
Director’s Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that —

(@) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31%t March, 2021, the applicable Indian

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) have been followed along with proper explanations relating to any material
departures;

(b) The directors selected such accounting policies/practices and applied them consistently and made

judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company at the end of financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year under

review;
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(c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors have prepared the Accounts for the financial year ended 315t March, 2021 on a going concern
basis; and

(e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

35. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI

The Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1)
and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the
Central Government.

36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors express their gratitude for help, guidance and support received from Airports Authority of
India, Government of Punjab, Government of Haryana, Indian Air Force, Ministry of Civil Aviation, Ministry
of Defense, Government of Union territory, Chandigarh, Custom, Immigration, CISF, Airlines, Bankers and
other Stakeholders.

Your Directors acknowledge wise counsel received from Statutory, Cost and Internal Auditors, guidance
received from C&AG and are grateful for their consistent support and cooperation.

On behalf of your Directors, | would like to place on record our deep appreciation for the hard work,
dedication, commitment and solidarity of your Company’s employees.

Your Directors and employees look forward to the future with confidence and stand committed towards
creating a mutually rewarding future for all stakeholders.

Last but not the least, the Board salutes with gratitude to all functionaries and personnel in the Government,
doctors, healthcare & medical staff, police, law enforcement, concessionaries and other agencies who are
at the frontline to fight the pandemic by keeping essential services operational.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Chandigarh International Airport Limited

Place: New Delhi SD/-
Date: 26.10.2021 Chairman
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Annexure - |

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

(1) A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
Programmes:
This CSR & Sustainability Policy is in consonance with, the Guidelines on CSR & Sustainability for
Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India
(DPE Guidelines, 2014), the provisions of the Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the
Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014 & 2021 notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of
India.

OBJECTIVES
The objectives of this policy are:
e To identify the CSR thrust areas and projects or programs which CHIAL plans to undertake;
e Modalities of execution of such CSR projects or programs;
¢ Monitoring process of such CSR projects or programs;
e To make the stakeholders aware about CSR practices in CHIAL; and
e To work keeping in mind the larger objective of sustainable development in
conduct of business and in pursuit of CSR agenda.

CSR & SUSTAINABILITY VISION

“Help Improve Lives by Partnering with Communities to deliver lasting Solutions.”
The Vision statement is built on the four value pillars:

Improving Lives

Sustainable Development

Partnerships

Care and Concern

7
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CSR & SUSTAINABILITY MISSION
Our mission is to be a committed Corporate Citizen alive towards Social Responsibility with a view to
make a positive difference to society.

ALLOCATION
CSR Budget will be utilized for implementing CSR projects as per Schedule VIl of the Companies Act
approved by the CSR Committee on an annual basis.

(2) Composition of the CSR Commiittee:

(i) Sh. I.N. Murthy, Chairman (Nominee Director)
(ii) Sh. Ajit Balaji Joshi, Member (Nominee Director)
(iii) Sh. Pradeep Kumar Agrawal, Member (Nominee Director)

(3) Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:
Rs. 3107.56 Lakhs

(4) Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above):
Rs. 62.15 Lakhs

(5) Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

@



(a)
(b)
(c)

Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Rs. 62.15 Lakhs

Amount unspent , if any: NIL
Manner in which the amount spent (Actual expenditure):

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

S. | CSR project | Sector | Projects or | Amount Amount Cumulative Amount
No or activity in programs outlay spent on the | expenditure spent:
identified which (1) Local (budget) projects or upto the Direct or
project area or | project or programs reporting through
is others program Sub-heads: period implementin
covered | (2) Specify wise (1) Direct g agency
the state expenditure (Rs. In
and (Rs.In | on projects or lakhs)
district lakhs) programs.
where (2) Overh
projects eads
or
program
was
undertak
en
1 Distribution Civil Mohali, 16.47 Direct 16.47 Direct
of Hospital Punjab expenditure on
2 Ambulances Ambala 16.47 projects or 16.47
Cantt., programs
Haryana
3 Moga, 10.91 10.91
Punjab
4 Firozpur, 10.91 10.91
Punjab
5 Nuh, 10.91 10.91
Haryana
Total 65.67 65.67

(6)

(7)

Reasons for not spending 2% of average net profit of the last three financial years:

N.A.

Responsibility statement of the CSR Committee:
Chandigarh International Airport Limited (CHIAL) is continuously working on providing a better
tomorrow and is committed towards holistic welfare of the society by undertaking CSR activities within
the ambit of Schedule-VII of the Act, as amended from time to time.

(Ajay Kumar)

SD/-

Chief Executive Officer

SD/-
(I.N. Murthy)
Chairman - CSR Committee
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FORM NO. MGT 9 Annexure - |l

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on financial year ended on 31.03.2021

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management
& Administration) Rules, 2014]

. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN U63013CH2010G0I1031999

2 Registration Date 28/01/2010

3 Name of the Company CHANDIGARH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED

4 Category/ COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
Sub-category of the Company UNION GOVERNMENT COMPANY

5 Address of the Registered office & | ROOM NO. 1, PROJECT OFFICE BUILDING,
contact details AIRPORTS AUTHORITY OF INDIA, CIVIL AIRPORT,

CHANDIGARH-160003, TEL NO. 0172-2242012

6 Whether listed company NO

7 Name, Address & contact details of the | N.A.
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

S. Name and Description of | NIC Code of the| % to total turnover of the
No. main products / services Product/service company
1 Supporting and auxiliary 63 100%
transport activities, travel
agencies etc.

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. Name and Address of Pan No. Subsidiary/ | % of Shares Held Applicable
No the Company Associate Section
NIL

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total
Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the
Shareholders beginning of the year end of the year %
[As on 31-March-2019] [As on 31-March-2020] Change
De | Physic Total % of De | Physic | Total % of during
m al Total mat al Total the year
at Shares Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
HUF

@
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b) Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
47,50
.| 47,50 47,50 . 47,50 ! .
Nil Sar ar 49 Nil ain | ,30,2 49 Nil
¢) State Govi(s) 30,210 | 30,210 30,210 10
d) Bodies Corp. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
e) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil 49,44
.| 49,44, | 49,44, 49,44, ! .
f)AnyPoérL\Jer - Nil 19.195 | 19,195 51 19.195 ,1995,1 51 Nil
Nif | 9694, | 9694, | 100 | N | 9694, | | il
Sub-total A (1) 49,405 | 49,405 49,405 | °’ 05’
(2) Foreign
a) NRlIs - Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Individual
b) Other - Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Individuals
c) Bodies Corp. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
d) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
e)Any other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total A (2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total
Shareholding of | ... | 96,94, | 96,94, | 100 | 96,94, ) 96,941 4, .
Nil Nil 49, ,49,4 Nil
Promoters 49,405 | 49,405 405 05
A (1+2)
B. Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
b)Banks/ FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
c) Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
d) State Govt(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
e) Venture Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Capital Funds
f) Insurance Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Companies
g) Flls Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
h) Foreign Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Venture Capital
Funds
i) Others Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(specify)
Sub-total B (1) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2.Non-
Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
ii) Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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b) Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
i) Individual Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
shareholders

holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh
ii) Individual Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1

lakh

c) Others Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(specify)

Sub-total B (2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Public | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Shareholding

B (1+2)

C. Shares held | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

by Custodian
for GDRs &

ADRs
96,94, 96,94, | 96,94
Grand  Total | Nil | 49, | 2o2% | 100 | Nit | 49, | 494 | ' Nil
(A+B+C) 405 ’ 405 05
(i) Shareholding of Promoters
S. Shareholder’s Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end
No Name beginning of the year of the year
No.of | %of | %of | No.of | %of | %of | % change
Shares | total | Shares | Shares | total | Shares -
Share | Pledged Share | Pledged | Shareholdi
s of / s of / ng during
the | encumb the | encumb | theyear
comp | eredto comp | eredto
any total any total
shares shares
1 | Airports Authority of | 49,44,19 49,44 1
India (AAI) 195 51 0 9,195 | °F 0 No Change
2 | Greater Mohali Area
Development 23’17&’315 24.5 0 25317851 24.5 0 No Change
Authority (GMADA) ’ '
3 | Haryana Sherhi
Vikas Pradhikaran
(HSVP)  [Erstwhile
Haryana Urban 23’178515 245 0 25317851 24.5 0 No Change
Development ’ '
Authority
(HUDA)]




AL REPORT }

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

specifying the
reasons  for
increase/
decrease
(e.q.
allotment/
transfer /
bonus/ sweat
equity etc.)

At the end of
the year

S. Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of the | Cumulative Shareholding during the
No year year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
At the
beginning of
the year
Date wise NO CHANGE
Increase /
Decrease in
Promoters
Shareholding
during the
year

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/ transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year

S. | For each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
No | Shareholders of the year during the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the NIL
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

S. | Shareholding of each | Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
No | Directors and each Key of the year during the
Managerial Personnel year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase /
Decrease in  Promoters
Shareholding during the year NIL
specifying the reasons for
increase /decrease (e.g.

allotment/ transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc.)
At the end of the year

V) INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured
Loans
excluding
deposits

Total

Unsecured Loans Indebtedness

Deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year

* Addition NIL
* Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)




V1) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
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S.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total Amount

Gross salary

(@) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax Act,
1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

NIL

Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors

S.
No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board/

committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

NIL

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

S.
No.

Particulars of

Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO CFO

CS

Total

1

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

47,17,205 30,47,977

7,98,600

85,63,782

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

Nil Nil

Nil

Nil

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961

Nil Nil

Nil

Nil

Stock Option

Nil Nil

Nil

Nil

WIN

Sweat Equity

Nil Nil

Nil

Nil

@
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4 Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
- as % of profit Nil Nil Nil Nil
- others, specify... Nil Nil Nil Nil

5 Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total 47,17,205 30,47,977 | 7,98,600 85,63,782

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
the Description Penalty / [RD / NCLT/ | if any (give Details)
Companies Punishment/ COURT]
Act Compounding
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment NIL

Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding

For Chandigarh International Airport Limited

SD/-
Chairman
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Annexure - Il

Conservation of enerqy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The information on Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014,are as follows:

a) Conservation of energy:

(i) |the steps taken or impact on
conservation of energy

1. Around 35% to 40% of all the electrical fixtures are of LED
instated during project time.

2. 400 Watts 375 Nos. HPSV Roof fitting replaced with 200 Watt
LED and 250/150 Watt MH Light replaced with 80 watt LED.

3. All Electrical Motors are of EFF-1 Class i.e most energy
efficient motors.

4. Motors are fitted with VFD (Variable Frequency Drives)
controls.

5. HVAC Chillers are of COP 6.3.

6. 1800 KVAR capacitor bank has been installed to take care of
power factor.

7. All AHUs, Cooling Towers are fitted with Variable Frequency
Drives.

8. Conventional FIDS monitors have been replaced with Energy
efficient LED monitors.

9. Conversion of balance conventional type light fixtures to
energy efficient LED type light fixture is in process.

(i) | the steps taken by the company
for utilizing alternate sources of
energy

A work to erect 5SMWp (3MWP in phase-l and 2MWP in Phase -Il),
ground mount solar power plant was awarded to M/s Renew Solar
Power New Delhi, on RESCO (BOO) Model.

Phase — | i.e. 3 MWp Solar Power Plant commissioned on date
26.10.2016. Net metering connection received from PSPCL state
electricity board & system put in operation w.e.f. 10/08/2019.

(iii) | the capital investment on energy
conservation equipment’s

No capital investment done. 3 MWp Solar Power Plant is
completely on RESCO Model (BOO Basis) through M/s Renew
Solar Power, New Delhi. Per unit charges of electricity is Rs. 4.64
till 25 Yrs.

Power Consumption:

Electricity 2020-21 2019-20
a) Units purchased (in lakhs) 23.13 65.18
b) Total amount (Rs. in lakhs) 214.74 576.34
¢) Rate per unit (in Rs.) PSPCL 9.28 (Avg.) 8.84 (Avg.)
d) Units purchased (in lakhs) — Solar Power 44.54 32.28
e) Total amount (Rs. In Lakhs) — Solar Amount 206.71 149.78
f) Rate per unit (in Rs.) — Solar 4.64 4.64
g) Own generation through Diesel Generator (Units 0.49 0.975
in lakhs)

h) Unit per liter of diesel oil (KWH/litre) 2.34 2.21

i) Cost per unit (in Rupees) for DG Set 31.24 32.22

o




b) Technology absorption:
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(i)

the efforts made towards technology

1. Technology of LED Lamps in replacement of

absorption

FTL, CFL lamps.

2. Technology LED light in replacement of HPSV
and MH Light.

3. Technology of Variable Frequency Drive for
Electrical motors.

4. Highest Energy Efficiency motors.

the benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution

Reduction in operational cost by highest energy efficiency
and less power consumption.

in case of imported technology (imported
during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year)

(a) the details of technology imported

1. Glass walled Passenger Boarding Bridges.
2. Inline Baggage Handling System.

and Development

(b) the year of import 2019
(c)whether the technology been fully | Yes
absorbed
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where | N.A.
absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof

(iv) | the expenditure incurred on Research | N.A.

c) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo details during the year is as under:

Foreign exchange Earnings

NIL

Foreign exchange Outgo

Rs. 565.43 Lakhs
(USD 7,43,699.05 & CAD 27,183.81)

For Chandigarh International Airport Limited

SD/-
Chairman
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance is essentially an ethos which guides and directs the management of
the Company in handling its affairs in the best interest of all the stakeholders and promotes
fairness, transparency, integrity and societal expectations.

The Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) of the Government of India has issued
Guidelines on Corporate Governance which are applicable to all Central Public Sector
Enterprises (CPSE’s) so as to achieve highest standard of fairness, transparency, trust,
integrity, responsibility and accountability with a strong emphasis on the ethical and
professional conduct.

Chandigarh International Airport Limited (CHIAL) believes that an organization must provide
empowerment to the executive management and simultaneously create a mechanism of
checks and balances which ensures that the decision-making powers vested in the executive
management are used with due care and responsibility and are not being misused. Our
Governance practices stems from an inherent desire to improve, innovate and reflects the
culture of trusteeship that is deeply ingrained in our value system and forms part of the
strategic thought process.

CHIAL is committed to the adoption of best governance practices and its adherence in the
true spirit, at all times. CHIAL's Corporate Governance processes continuously reinforce and
help in actualizing the CHIAL's belief in ethical corporate citizenship and is manifested
through exemplary standards of ethical behavior, both within the organization as well as in
external relationships.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors ("Board" or "the Board") of any organization is the flag bearer of the
corporate governance principle and practice and it oversees and ensures that long term
interest of all the stakeholders is protected. The Company is managed by the Board of
Directors, which formulates strategies and policies, oversees their implementation and also
reviews Company Performance periodically. Board of Directors is at the core of the
Company’s corporate governance practices and oversees how the management serves and
protects the long term interest of the stakeholders.

Chandigarh International Airport Limited (CHIAL) is a Private Limited Company incorporated
under Companies Act, 1956 with Airports Authority of India (AAl) having 51% Equity Stake,
Punjab Government (Greater Mohali Area Development Authority-GMADA) and Haryana
Government (Haryana Shehri Vikas Pradhikaran (HSVP) each having 24.5% Equity Stake.

Articles of Association of the Company stipulates that the number of the Directors shall not
be less than nine and not more than twelve. The number of Directors on the Board of the
Company shall be in proportion to the shareholding of AAl, GMADA and HSVP and as long
as the Board of Directors consists of nine Directors, AAl shall have right to nominate five
Directors (including one from MoCA) and GMADA & HSVP shall have right to nominate two
Directors each. Hence, CHIAL comprises of Nominee Directors only. The members on the
Board are highly experienced personnel in their respective functional areas who provide
directions to the management on operational issues, adoption of systems and best practices
in management and oversee compliance of various statutory, legal and other requirements.

O
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Every director has disclosed his/her concern or interest in other company or companies or
body corporate firms or other association with individuals, by giving a declaration in writing in
Form MBP-1 as per Companies Act, 2013.

The Composition of the Board as on 31.03.2021 are as under:-

Representatives of Airports Authority of India
Sh. Narasimha Murthy Indrakanti Chairman/ Nominee Director
Sh. Sanjay Jain Nominee Director
Sh. M.N.N. Rao Nominee Director
Sh. D.K. Kamra Nominee Director
Sh. Joyanta Chakraborty Nominee Director
Representatives of Punjab Government
Sh. Tejveer Singh, IAS Nominee Director
Sh. Pradeep Kumar Agrawal, IAS Nominee Director
Representatives of Haryana Government
Sh. Sudhir Rajpal, IAS Nominee Director
Sh. Ajit Balaji Joshi, IAS Nominee Director

Changes in the Board of Directors

During the year, following Nominee Directors were appointed:

S. No. Name Date of Appointment
1. Sh. D.K. Kamra 18.08.2020
2. Sh. Pradeep Kumar Agrawal, I1AS 18.08.2020
3. Sh. Joyanta Chakraborty, IRSEE 03.03.2021
4. Sh. Sanjay Jain 16.03.2021
5. Sh. Ajit Balaji Joshi, IAS 18.03.2021
6. Sh. Sudhir Rajpal, IAS 26.03.2021

The Board welcomes all the new Directors and hopes that the Company shall immensely
benefit from their rich experience.

RESIGNATIONS

During the year, following Nominee Directors resigned:

S. No. Name Date of Resignation
1. Sh. Rakesh Kalra 18.08.2020
2. Sh. Venkatramana Ramachandra Hegde 18.08.2020
3. Smt. Kavita Singh, IAS 18.08.2020
4. Sh. Vineet Gulati 16.03.2021
5. Sh. Vinay Singh Yadav, IAS 18.03.2021
6. Sh. A K. Singh, IAS 26.03.2021

g
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The Board appreciated the hard-work and dedication towards work put in by Sh. Rakesh
Kalra, Sh. Venkatramana Ramachandra Hegde, Smt. Kavita Singh, IAS, Sh. Vineet Gulati,
Sh. Vinay Singh Yadav, IAS and Sh. A.K. Singh, IAS during their tenure as a member of the
Board.

Key Managerial Personnel

As per Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013, the following Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP) are continuing:

e Sh. Ajay Kumar, Chief Executive Officer
e Sh. Rakesh Dembla, Chief Financial Officer
e Smt. Avneet Kaur, Company Secretary

2. BOARD MEETINGS

CHIAL complies with the Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules & Regulations
applicable w.r.t. convening and conducting the Board/Committee Meetings. The meetings of
the Board are held regularly within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and
are convened by giving appropriate advance notice after approval of the Chairman of the
Board. The meeting of the Board are conducted as per a structured agenda and members of
the Board have complete access to all information of the Company and are also free to
recommend inclusion of any subject matter in the agenda for discussion. Detailed agenda
containing the management reports and the explanatory statements are circulated in
advance amongst the members of the Board for facilitating meaningful, informed and
focussed decisions at the meetings. Where it is not practicable to circulate any document or
the agenda note for a particular item of business, the same is tabled with the approval of
Chairman and majority of the Board members. Senior officials are called to provide additional
inputs to the items being discussed by the Board, as and when necessary.

During the financial year 2020-21, Four (4) meetings of the Board were held, the details of
which are as below:

S. No. | Meeting No. Date of Board Board No. of Nominee
Meeting Strength Directors present
1 45 18/08/2020 8 6
2 46 29/10/2020 8 8
3 47 24/12/2020 8 5
4 48 16/02/2021 8 4
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Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting are given
hereunder:

Name of Director No. of Board No. of Attendance at No. of
Meetings Board last Annual Directorship*
held during | Meetings General
his tenure attended | Meeting (AGM)
Sh. Narasimha Murthy 4 4 Absent 6
Indrakanti
Sh. Sanjay Jain (w.e.f. 0 0 Absent 1
16.03.2021)
Sh. M.N.N. Rao 4 3 Absent 1
Sh. D.K. Kamra 4 4 Present 2
(w.e.f. 18.08.2020)
Sh. Joyanta Chakraborty, 0 0 Absent 3
IRSEE (w.e.f.
03.03.2021)
Sh. Tejveer Singh, IAS 4 3 Absent 2
Sh. Pradeep Kumar 4 4 Absent 1
Agrawal, IAS
(w.e.f. 18.08.2020)
Sh. Sudhir Rajpal, IAS 0 0 Absent 1
(w.e.f. 26.03.2021)
Sh. Ajit Balaji Joshi, IAS 0 0 Absent 5
(w.e.f. 18.03.2021)

* No. of Directorships in entities including this entity as on 315 March, 2021 is taken
into account.

Recording of Minutes of the Board Meetings and follow-up mechanism

The minutes of the each Board Meetings are recorded by the Company Secretary. Draft
minutes are circulated to members for their comments and finalized minutes are entered into
the minutes book within 30 Days of the conclusion of the meeting in compliances to
Companies Act, 2013. Decisions taken in the Board Meetings are communicated to
respective departments for necessary action and action taken report on decisions of the
previous meetings(s) is placed at the succeeding meeting of the Board for information of the
members.

Compliances

While preparing the Agenda, notes to agenda and minutes of the meetings(s) adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations including Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued
thereunder and secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
are ensured.

o
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3. AUDIT COMMITTEE
The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the
Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the
Company. Hence, Audit Committee is not constituted.

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are not applicable to the Company and hence, the Company has not constituted
such committee.

5. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
The provisions of Section 178(5) relating to constitution of Stakeholders Relationship
Committee are not applicable to the Company and hence, the Company has not constituted
such committee.

6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE
As per the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board of Directors of your company constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
to monitor the CSR activities.

The composition of CSR Committee as on 31.03.2021 is given below:

S. No. | Name of the Member Designation Status in the
Committee
1. Sh. Narasimha Murthy Indrakanti Nominee Director Chairman
2. Sh. Pradeep Kumar Agrawal, IAS Nominee Director Member
3 Sh. Ajit Balaji Joshi, IAS Nominee Director Member

Mrs. Avneet Kaur, Company Secretary of the Company shall act as the Secretary to the CSR
Committee.

The objectives of CSR policy are:
e Toidentify the CSR thrust areas and projects or programs which CHIAL plans
to undertake;
Modalities of execution of such CSR projects or programs;
Monitoring process of such CSR projects or programs;
To make the stakeholders aware about CSR practices in CHIAL; and
To work keeping in mind the larger objective of sustainable development in
conduct of business and in pursuit of CSR agenda.

CSR & SUSTAINABILITY VISION
“Help Improve Lives by Partnering with Communities to deliver lasting Solutions.”

The Vision statement is built on the four value pillars:
« Improving Lives

Sustainable Development

Partnerships

Care and Concern

*
X4

*,

R/ *
X EIR X 4

©
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CSR & SUSTAINABILITY MISSION
Our mission is to be a committed Corporate Citizen alive towards Social responsibility with a
view to make a positive difference to society.

During the year, two (2) meetings of CSR Committee were held on 24.12.2020 and
26.03.2021.The attendance details are as under:

Name of the Member Designation | No. of Board Meetings No. of Board

held during his tenure Meetings
attended

Sh. Narasimha Murthy Chairman 2 2

Indrakanti

Sh. Pradeep Kumar Member 2 2

Agrawal, IAS

Sh. Ajit Balaji Joshi, IAS Member 0 0

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meetings of the Company are held either at the Registered Office of the
Company or at the corporate office of the Company. In view of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common
venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and MCA Circulars, the
AGM of the Company for the year 2019-20 & 2020-21 was held through VC.

The details of Annual general meetings held during the last three years are as under:

Year Date Time Special Resolution
Passed
2020-21 28.10.2021 11.00 A.M. NIL
2019-20 28.12.2020 03.00 P.M. NIL
2018-19 30.09.2019 11:00 A.M NIL
DISCLOSURES

(i)  During the year, there were no transactions of material nature with the Directors or the
Management or the subsidiary or relatives that had potential conflict of interest with the
Company.

(i)  The details of “Related Party Disclosures” have been disclosed at Note No. 33 in the
Notes forming part of Accounts in the Annual Report.

(i) There was no case of non-compliance of provisions of Companies Act, 2013 or any
other statutory laws. The statutory authorities have also not passed any stricture or
imposed penalty on the company under any Act/Rules.

(iv) The Company has complied with the requirements of DPE Guidelines on Corporate
Governances.

©
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9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

e Annual Report contains Auditor’'s Report, Audited Annual Accounts, Board’s Report,
CA&G Report, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Corporate Governance
Report including information for the Shareholders and other important information is
circulated to the members and other entitle thereto.

e CHIAL produce periodic reports and press releases covering important matters relating
to CHIAL.

e CHIAL also have a facility for information sharing with stakeholders through the use of
Information and Communication Technologies (ICT) to ensure prompt delivery of
document, less paper consumption, save trees and avoid loss of documents in transit.

10. TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS
No specific training programmes were arranged for Board Members. However, at the Board/
Committee Meeting, detailed presentations are made by senior executives/
professionals/consultants on business related issues, risk assessment etc.

11. REVIEW OF COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE LAWS
The Board has periodically reviewed the compliance reports of all applicable laws to the
company and has ensured the compliance of all the applicable laws.
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CEOI/CFO CERTIFICATION

To
The Board of Directors
CHIAL.

We, Ajay Kumar, Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Rakesh Dembla, Chief Financial Officer
(CFO), certify that:

a. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended
31.03.2021 on that date and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i. the said statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

ii. the said statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are
in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of
conduct.

c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
company pertaining to financial reporting. We have not come across any reportable
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls.

d. We have indicated to the auditors that:
i. No significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year financial
year 2020-21.
ii. No significant changes in accounting policies during the financial year 2020-21 and their
disclosures in the notes to the financial statement.
iii. No instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Mohali Ajay Kumar Rakesh Dembla
Date: 28.10.2021 Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The objective of this report is to share and keep you abreast with the happenings and
transformations occurring within CHIAL, that in the industry and economy, its technology and
its overall business strategies. Among other things, the Management Discussion & Analysis
provides an overview of the previous year of operations and how CHIAL fared in that time. It
also provides the report on the upcoming year, outlining future goals and approaches to new
projects. We begin with a general review of the industry, followed by the operational and
financial details of CHIAL including details of its human resources.

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing CHIAL's objectives,
projections, estimate expectations may be "forward looking statements". Actual results could
differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could influence
CHIAL's operations include economic developments within the country, demand and supply
conditions in the industry, input prices, changes in Government regulations, tax laws and
other factors such as litigation and industrial relations.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

The aviation industry is a service industry providing transport services in which Indian
Aviation Industry can broadly be divided into military and civil aviation. Ministry of Civil
Aviation is responsible for civilian aviation and Ministry of Defence is responsible for the
Indian Air Force.

Airlines and Airports Operator are the two main players/stakeholder in the industry. While
Airlines offer the actual transport service whereas Airports Operator provide the ground
Navigational/Terminal, City Side infrastructure to handle aircraft movements.

Covid — 19 is the most significant crisis that Indian aviation has ever faced, affecting
passenger traffic, cargo and revenues at large. The industry has been among the worst hit by
the pandemic with many airlines forced to suspend or close its operations, upsetting supply
chains globally and lost millions of jobs. India’s domestic passenger traffic slipped to a 10
year low in the financial year 2020-21.

The second wave of Covid pandemic has severely affected the Airport operations in India.
Ministry of Civil Aviation has taken lot of initiatives such as bringing more than 150 tonnes of
Covid related medical supplies including oxygen concentrators and ventilators from different
parts of the world, transportation of vaccine (Domestic + International) has been facilitated,
the Empowered Group of MoCA is exploring the possibilities of re-commencing the incoming
international flights, etc.

During the period April 2020 to March 2021, all Indian airports taken together handled 11.89
lakhs aircrafts movements (excluding General Aviation Movements) and 1155.10 lakh
passengers. Had 2020 been a normal year, it would have seen more than 40 million
commercial flights take to the skies carrying more than 4.7 billion passengers.

Due to the on-going Covid-19 pandemic, Government has imposed several restrictions on
activities including movement of persons from one location to another.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Chandigarh International Airport Limited (CHIAL) is a joint venture company with Airports
Authority of India having 51% Equity Stake, Punjab Government (Greater Mohali Area
Development Authority-GMADA) and Haryana Government (Haryana Shehri Vikas
Pradhikaran (HSVP) each having 24.5% Equity Stake to operate, develop and maintain the
Chandigarh International Airport (a new state of art International Airport at Mohali, Punjab).

o
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The New Civil Air Terminal has been established with distinct green building features on a
land area of 300 Acres. The new International Airport is operational from October 19, 2015.

Since its inception, Chandigarh International Airport has added umpteen amenities along
with increased air service to support the needs of rapidly expanding population base.
Presently, 7 airline companies are operating flights to 16 Domestic destinations and 1
International destination.

With the foremost objective to provide high quality aviation facility, which is both safe and
secure, team CHIAL, also strives to provide a comfortable and delightful stay to the
passengers at the airport. The modern Integrated Terminal Building is made of glass and
steel structure and is equipped with the modern state-of-the-art equipment and passenger
facilities. Terminal Building is fully air conditioned with Common Use Terminal Equipment
(CUTE), Flight Information Display System (FIDS) and In-line Baggage handling system etc.
for efficiency of operations. Terminal Building is designed on the concept of eco-building with
energy efficient features and qualifies for a “4 STAR” Green Rating for Integrated Habitat
Assessment (GRIHA). Local Art & Culture of Punjab & Haryana State and the Union
Territory, Chandigarh is depicted in the terminal building through murals & paintings.

CHIAL's persistent efforts to improve the services and passenger facilities at its airports have
placed it amongst the best service providers in the world. Chandigarh International Airport
has achieved an overall satisfaction score of 4.99 for the year 2020 in the ACI Airport Service
Quality passenger survey (ASQ) and won TWO Airport service quality awards conferred by
ACl in 2 to 5 million passenger per year category in Asia Pacific Region as listed below:

* Best Airport by size and region
» Best Hygiene measures by region

Revenue Mix

CHIAL's revenues can be broadly categorized into Aeronautical, Non-Aeronautical, Cargo,
Airport lease revenues and other from Allied services such as Consultancy projects. All the
companies revenue are from domestic market.

Aeronautical Revenue includes revenue from all regulated charges levied at CHIAL i.e.
Parking Charges, User Development Fee and Cargo (X-Bis Screening Charges) are being
recognized at the rates prescribed by Airport Economic Regulatory Authority (AERA) &
Common user terminal equipment charges(CUTE) and Baggage reconciliation system (BRS)
fee are recognized as per the contract rates. Extension of Watch hours is charged as per
applicable rates. User Development Fees is recognized in respect of each embarking
passenger at a specified rate as approved by AERA.

Non-Aeronautical Revenue means all revenue streams other than Aeronautical Revenue i.e.
revenue from concessions, rents and land leases, food and beverages concessions, utility
charges and other non-aviation related charges as recognized based on the terms of
contractual agreement.

The financial year 2020 - 21 had begun under the influence of the pervasive virus in the

world. Revenue of the CHIAL decreased by Rs. 42.39 crore (38.70%) in 2020-21 as
compared to previous year, details thereof are as follows:

®
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Amount (in ¥ Crore)

S. Revenue FY FY Increase or Increase or
No. | Constituent 20-21 19-20 Decrease over Decrease in
last FY in terms terms of %
of Rs.
1. | User Development| 37.88 66.05 (28.17) (42.65)
Fees
2. | Other Aeronautical| 2.20 8.12 (5.92) (72.91)
Airport services*
3. | Non-Aeronautical 26.62 34.83 (8.21) (23.57)
Airport services
4. | Cargo revenue 0.46 0.55 (0.09) (16.36)
Total Revenue 67.16 109.55 (42.39) (38.70)

*After formation of NASFT trust by MoCA on 01.07.2019, all the revenue & Expenditure of
CISF has been absorbed by trust resulting in discontinuation of Aviation Security Fee (ASF)
revenue & CISF Expenditure in the books of CHIAL.

Revenue Mix (FY 2020-21)

B User Development fees
W Other Aeronautical Revenue
= Non-Aeronautical Revenue

B Cargo Revenue

Cost Mix

CHIAL’s key expense categories include employee costs (comprising employee salaries,
allowance and contributions to provident fund), finance cost, other expenses including
operating expenses, administration expenses etc. and depreciation.

The expenditure has decreased by Rs. 17.73 crores (23.84%) in 2020-21 as compared to
previous year due to formation of NASFT (National Aviation Security Fee Trust), all the
revenue & expenditure of CISF has been absorbed by trust resulting in discontinuation of
Aviation Security Fee (ASF) revenue & CISF Expenditure in the books of CHIAL. The details
of the expenditure incurred are as follows:-

Amount (in ¥Crores)

S. No. | Cost Constituent FY FY Increase or Increase or
20-21 19-20 Decrease Decrease in
Over last FY terms of %
1. Employee Benefits 5.52 5.40 0.12 2.22
Expenses
2. Finance Cost 1.23 1.45 (0.22) (15.17)
3. Depreciation 30.63 33.71 (3.08) (9.14)
4. Other expenses 19.25 33.80 (14.55) (43.05)
Total 56.63 74.36 (17.73) (23.84)

I g -
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Cost Mix (FY 2020-21)

B Employee Benefits Expenses
B Finance Cost
m Depreciation Expenses

B Other Expenses

Passenger throughput and Aircraft Movements (2020-21 vs 2019-20)

The total Passenger throughput and Aircraft Movements have decreased by 1.87% and
9.15% respectively. Details of Passenger throughput and Aircraft Movements during the year
and comparison with previous year are given below:-

Particulars (in Nos.) 2020-21 2019-20 % change
Passengers Throughput

Domestic 13,70,389 23,23,707 41)
International 11,245 1,21,495 (90.75)
Total 13,81,634 24,45,202 (43.50)
Aircraft Movements

Domestic 12,786 17,527 (27.05)
International 98 794 (87.66)
Total 12,884 18,321 (29.67)

KEY STRENGTHS AND WEAKNESSES

Chandigarh International Airport serves dynamic and growing Chandigarh region which has proximity to 5
states i.e. Jammu & Kashmir, Uttaranchal, Punjab, Haryana & Himachal Pradesh and has grown
tremendously in the last 10 years with more flights to national and international destinations. The Airport is
beginning to attract more business aviation to its modern facilities and is expected to increase its share at
the airport over the next few years. The catchment area of Chandigarh contains huge number of
international travelers and business class travelers. Per capita income of Chandigarh is among the highest
in India.

CHIAL serves the state of Punjab where NRI footprint is high travelling to destinations like Europe, US,
London, Canada etc. which are high in demand from Chandigarh. Potential for UK/US/Canada/Pacific
Countries is very huge but due to limitations of Bilateral Rights, International flights to these destinations
are not able to start from Chandigarh which is one of the key weakness.

m—— O
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MAJOR OPPORTUNITES AND THREATS

Airports have now become more than just a port that people travel through on their destination, with many
now operating as Hubs that send passengers around the world. Owing to the airport's strategic locationi.e.
closer to the tri city of Mohali, Chandigarh & Panchkula, there is an ample opportunity for growth of city side
development, huge prospects of capturing the NRI & tourist driven market of Punjab and Haryana.

Further, there is a huge potential to develop as an MRO hub being the second highest cost component for
Indian Carriers.

Leverage on Non-aeronautical Revenues such as retail, advertising, vehicle parking etc; Increasing the
Cargo Business, Leverage on Improved Technology, Huge Investment potential in the Industry,
International opportunities for consulting and other services and marketing initiatives to improve
engagement with customers are being seen as great opportunities.

Further, Increasing competition from other regional airports, economic fluctuation, unpredicted rate growth,
stricter environment & safety norms and terrorism are being considered as major threats. Also, Airport
Industry is highly capital-intensive Industry and it takes much longer term to recover the higher cost of
control.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

Hazardous activities affecting safety, inadequate financial processes and IT back-up systems are amongst
the most typical operational risks within the Aviation industry. Other Operational risks identified include
potential degradation of service delivery standards, unforeseen disruption to flow management,
maintenance challenges to aging facilities. Further, Strategic risks like decisions related to pricing,
development of airport infrastructure, findings new products or markets, alliance decisions which will affect
future operations decisions.

Compliance risks regard the adherence with external regulations and legislations and any non-compliance
may lead to heavy penalties and above all loss of reputation. Also breach of contract, even though
unintentionally, may bring legal consequences impacting CHIAL. Further, CHIAL's operations are exposed
to a variety of financial risks too like credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.

CHIAL understand the significance of risk management and its criticality for organization's success and
business continuity. Thus, the Company has adequate system of business risk evaluation and
management to ensure sustainable business growth and to promote pro-active approach in evaluating and
resolving the risks associated with the business. Furthermore, the decisions at every level including Board
level are taken considering the risk involved. Also, Audit function reports the efficacy of risk management
controls which helps the management inimproving the measures required to be taken in this regard.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

CHIAL has a sound system of internal controls which ensures compliance with statutory requirements,
regulations and various policies and guidelines of the Company. Besides, Statutory Audit and Audit by the
C&AG, regular and exhaustive internal audits are conducted through professional agencies to ensure that
a proper system of checks and balance is in place in the Company to take care that all the assets are
safeguarded and protected against any possible loss and all the transactions are authorized, recorded and
reported properly.

Internal Audit is conducted as per the Accounting Standards and Rules/Policies formulated by the

— © 0
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Company from time to time. The Company has a well - defined Delegations of Powers (DOP) in place,
which lays down the powers for different managerial levels and Committees to facilitate faster decision
making. The systems and procedures laid down by the Company ensure maximum transparency in all
commercial deals. The various policies, procedures and guidelines are continuously reviewed and
modified from time to time based on experience gained in the past transactions so as to improve the
effectiveness of the systems of due diligence of associates and risk mitigation.

Vigilance division, AAl oversees that the guidelines of the Government and the rules/procedures of the
Company are strictly adhered to/implemented in all matters. The Vigilance Division conducts inspection of
the Company and makes suggestions for taking corrective/preventive action.

OUTLOOK

The Civil Aviation Industry in India has ushered in a new era of expansion. It is considered to be one of the
fastest growing industry in the country and is expected to become the third largest aviation market in the
near future. As per the report of ACI, India is leading the Asia Pacific Region with highest growth in Air
passenger traffic. So, the outlook for the airport sector remains positive.

Chandigarh International Airport is a customs airport which serves the Union Territory Chandigarh and
other Indian states of Punjab, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh etc. The airport runway is located in the Union
Territory of Chandigarh while the International Terminal is located on the southern side of the runway in
Jhurheri, Mohali, Punjab. The present runway 11/29 has length of 10,400 ft. The runway 11 uses a CAT-I
ILS system and runway 29 uses a CAT-II ILS system as of now. The terminal is equipped with aero - bridges
and apron for parking wide bodied jet aircrafts. Since its inception, Chandigarh International Airport has
added many amenities, and significantly increased air service to support the needs of the rapidly expanding
population base. The airport is poised to continue growing as the primary air - service facility in the growing
region and is considered as the air gateway to the northern part of India.

After the approval of Serum Institute of India (Sll)'s Covishield and Bharat Biotech's Covaxin by Drug
Controller General of India (DCGI) for emergency use, the supply of vaccine kicked off in India. Chandigarh
International Airport efficiently handled the COVID-19 Vaccine received from Pune & Hyderabad. CHIAL
handled smoothly the supplies in close coordination with Airlines, CISF, State Police and state health
authorities. All the laid down protocols for handling the vaccine were followed and boxes of COVID-19
vaccine received were handed over to designated health authorities of Haryana, Punjab, Chandigarh &
Himachal Pradesh.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIALPERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
Company has commenced its commercial operations from 19.10.2015 and initial loss of operations for first
two years i.e. 2015-16 & 2016-17. Expected revenue breakeven was nearly 6-7 years initially, which has
been achieved in arecord time of 3 years.

Due to the on-going Covid-19 pandemic, Government has imposed several restrictions on activities
including movement of persons from one location to another. Even though, there were restrictions on the
operation of domestic aircraft, further, second wave of the pandemic has badly hit India and its aviation
sector, however, the performance of CHIAL is significant.

During the year 2020-21, the operation of Company was severely affected by the spread of Covid — 19

pandemic. The total revenue for the year ended 31.03.2021 was Rs. 78.65 Crores as against Rs. 120.53
Crores during the year 2019-20 resulting in decrease in revenue by 34.75% over previous year.
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The Company has reported a profit after tax of Rs. 14.77 Crores for the current year (i.e. F.Y.
2020-21) against Rs. 33.19 Crores during the year 2019-20 with a downfall of 55.50%.

The above financial performance is exceptional among Airport operators.
Further, CHIAL has introduced Incentive Schemes for Domestic & International Airlines to
encourage Airlines to serve new/unserved domestic routes and new/unserved/exisiting

international routes from Chandigarh International Airport Limited.

Company has disbursed First Interim & Final dividend amounting to Rs. 14.54 Crores @1.5%
i.e. Rs. 0.15 per equity share to our shareholders as approved by the Board on 17.06.2021.

Cheque amounting to Rs 6.67 Crore
presented to Sh. Sanjeev Kumar,
Chairman, AAI

Cheque amounting to Rs 3.20 Crore
presented to Capt. Amarinder Singh, Chief
Minister, Punjab

Cheque amounting to Rs 3.20 Crore
presented to Sh. Manohar Lal Khattar,
Chief Minister, Haryana

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES, INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

Human capital has continued to be the key engine for our growth and aspirations. CHIAL has
taken several initiatives to focus on creating a positive work environment that provides
employees with ample growth and development opportunities as well as ensuring high levels
of motivation and engagement. Measures for safety of employee, welfare, training,
performance based appraisal system, compensation, career growth continued to remain key

priority of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGICAL
CONSERVATION, RENEWABLE ENERGY DEVELOPMENTS, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE CONSERVATION

With the cooperation and support of all airport stakeholders, Chandigarh International Airport
faired exceedingly well in the mission of energy saving in year 2020 as compared to 2019.
CHIAL achieved the target by optimizing the operation of HVAC system by switching off
chillers plant, AHUs system during lean hours of passenger movement. Besides, switching
off area lights in terminal building and outdoor lighting/apron flood lights during non-
operational hours led to total energy saving of approx. Rs. 3.14 crore in 2020.

Further, the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy are as under:

Around 35% to 40 % of all the electrical fixtures are of LED instated during project time.
400 Watts, 375 Nos. HPSV Roof fitting replaced with 200 Watt LED and 250/150 Watt
MH Light replaced with 80 watt LED.

All Electrical Motors are of EFF-1 Class i.e most energy efficient motors.

Motors are fitted with VFD (Variable Frequency Drives) controls.

HVAC Chillers are of COP 6.3.

1800 KVAR capacitor bank has been installed to take care of power factor.

All AHUs, Cooling Towers are fitted with Variable Frequency Drives.

Conventional FIDS monitors have been replaced with Energy efficient LED monitors.
Conversion of balance conventional type light fixtures to energy efficient LED type light
fixture is in process.

VVVVVVYVY VY

The efforts made towards technology absorption are as under:
» Technology of LED Lamps in replacement of FTL, CFL lamps.
» Technology LED light in replacement of HPSV and MH Light.
» Technology of Variable Frequency Drive for Electrical motors.
» Highest Energy Efficiency motors.

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo details during the year is as under:

Foreign exchange Earnings NIL

Foreign exchange Outgo Rs. 565.43 Lakhs

(USD 7,43,699.05 & CAD 27,183.81)

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board of Directors of your company constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
to monitor the CSR activities.

The objectives of CSR policy are:
¢ To identify the CSR thrust areas and projects or programs which CHIAL plans
to undertake;
Modalities of execution of such CSR projects or programs;
Monitoring process of such CSR projects or programs;
To make the stakeholders aware about CSR practices in CHIAL; and
To work keeping in mind the larger objective of sustainable development in
conduct of business and in pursuit of CSR agenda.

CSR & SUSTAINABILITY VISION
“Help Improve Lives by Partnering with Communities to deliver lasting Solutions.”

The Vision statement is built on the four value pillars:

‘ o

< Improving Lives
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+» Sustainable Development
% Partnerships
% Care and Concern

K/
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CSR & SUSTAINABILITY MISSION
Our mission is to be a committed Corporate Citizen alive towards Social responsibility with a
view to make a positive difference to society.

ALLOCATION
CSR Budget will be utilized for implementing CSR projects as per Schedule VII of the
Companies Act approved by the CSR Committee on an annual basis.

Company has Corporate Social Responsibility high on its agenda and is carrying out various
activities which are aimed at improving the quality of life of the peripheral area and
neighborhood community. During the year 2020-21, Rs. 65.67 lakhs was spent wherein
Ambulance has been provided to civil hospitals i.e

Nuh (Aspirational District)

Firozpur (Aspirational District)

Moga (Aspirational District)

Mohali (Nearby area)

Ambala (Nearby area)

ahwN=

OTHER ACTIVITIES:

SWACHHTA PAKHWADA

Special cleanliness drives were conducted
as part of the ‘Swachhta Pakhwada’
organized at the Chandigarh Airport from 15t
Nov to 15" Nov, 20.

Cleanliness drive, distribution of masks to
housekeeping staff, drawing competition for
housekeeping staff children was organized
as part of the drive. On the concluding day
of Swachhta Pakhwada on November 18™,
CEO, Sh. Ajay Kumar described ‘Swachhta’
as a continuous process, which should be
inculcated right from childhood. He urged all
to keep the airport premises clean and
shoulder the responsibility of making India
clean.
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CHIAL OBSERVED VIGILANCE AWARENESS WEEK

Vigilance Awareness Week-2020 was observed at Chandigarh International Airport in a
befitting manner and with great enthusiasm from 27" October to 2™ November, 20 in line
with directives from Central Vigilance Commission with the theme “Vigilant India, Prosperous
India”. During the week, several programmes were conducted like taking integrity pledge,
essay and slogan competition. Apart from these, outreach activities for passengers like
grievance redressal camp, quiz competition on anti-corruption, display of banners at various
prominent locations of airport and vendors’ sensitization programme were organized.

PLANTATION DRIVES:

To celebrate Azadi Ka Amrit Mahotsav -
India @ 75, Plantation drives were carried
out at Chandigarh International Airport
wherein Children’s of housekeeping staff
planted trees in Airport premises.

o ) Sh. Sanjeev Kumar, Chairman, AAI during
his visit to Chandigarh International Airport
planted trees in Airport premises to celebrate
Azadi Ka Amrit Mahotsav - India @ 75.

| ) ot
e

During ‘Swachhta Pakhwada’ also organized
at the Chandigarh Airport from 1%t Nov to 15"
Nov, 20, CHIAL Staff planted trees in Airport
premises.
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Indigo Airlines Staff planted trees in Airport
premises to commemorate and celebrate
WORLD EQUALITY DAY

BLOOD DONATION CAMP: A health & blood donation camp was organised by Central
Industrial Security Force (CISF) in association with PGl on 05.02.2021. The camp was
inaugurated by Sh. Ajay Kumar, CEO CHIAL & Sh. Sunit Sharma, CASO/ Commandant.
Personnel from CISF, CHIAL, Punjab Police, all airlines & other agencies voluntarily donated
the blood. A total of 58 units of blood were donated at the camp.

INTERNATIONAL WOMENS DAY

International Women's Day was celebrated at Chandigarh International Airport. On this
occasion, women personnel working at the airport organized a seminar for women
empowerment and plantation was done in the premises of the airport. On this occasion, Mrs.
Avneet Kaur, Mrs. Preeti Beniwal, Mrs. Deepika Ghai, Mrs. Anju Verma, Ms. Surabhi
Srivastava, Ms. Mehak Gupta and Ms. Malvika Singh planted saplings. Mr. Ajay Kumar,
CEO of Chandigarh International Airport, congratulated all the women personnel on this
occasion and said that women have been instrumental in the development of all sectors of
society. The celebration of International Women's Day globally is a symbol of the fact that
women have achieved a status in every field on their own.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statement contained in the Annual Report may constitute forward-looking statement
within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. These statements are based on
management’s views and assumptions at the time information was prepared and involve
known and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results or performance
to differ materially from those expressed or implied in such statements made in the Annual
Report. The Company expressly disclaims any obligation or undertaking to release publicly
any updates or revisions to any forward looking statements contained herein to reflect any
change in the Company’s expectations with regard thereto or any change in events,
conditions or circumstances or which any such statements are based.
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IMDEPENDEMNT AUDITOR'S RCPORT

To the Members of Chandigarh International Airport limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Staterents

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Chandigarh Imternational Arport
Limited, which comprise the Balance Sheet as s March 31, 2021 and the Statement of Profit

and Loss for the year then ended, 2nd a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explenatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our infurmation anc according ta the explanations given to
us the aforesaid financial statements give the information requirec by the Companies Act,
2013 {"the Act”] in the manner so required and give 2 true and fair view in canlormily wilh
the Indian Indian Accounting Stancards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies | Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles
generally accepied in India, of the state of affairs of the Comaany as at March 31, 2021, and
its profit and cash flows for the year onded on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audil af the finzncial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 14310} of the Companies Acl,2013. Our rosponsibilizies
under those Standards are furtner described ir the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our repart. We arc independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Elhics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountarts of
Indiz {ICAl] together with the requirements that are relevart to cur audii of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Acl and the Rules made there under, and we have

fulfilled aur other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements and the
ICAI's Code of Cthies.

We belicve that the audil evicence obtained by us is sufficient and zppropriate to provide a
basis for our audit ooinion on the financial statements,
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v dentily ant assess the risks of material misstetement of the linancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and oerflorm audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficicnt and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for ane resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misreprosentations, ar the override of internal control,

= Ohtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in crder to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the dreumstarces. Linder section 143(3)(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are alsc responsible for exaressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateress of accounting policies used z2nd the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and relzted disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit cvidence ublained, whether a material uncertainty
exists ralated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ahility to continuc as a going cancern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty cxists,
we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, i such disclosures are inacequale, Lo modify our opinian.
Our conclusions are bazed on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue &5 a going concern.

s Fvaluale Lhe ocverall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
includirg the disclosures, and whether the financial staterments represent the underlying
transaclions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Materiality is the magnitude of misstatemnents in the financial statements that,
individually or in aggregase, makes il probable that the cconomic decisions of 2
rezsonably knowleceeable user of the financial statements may be inlluenced, We
consider quantizative materiality and qualitative factors in (1) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our wark; and {ii} v evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financizl statements,

+ We communicale wilh thuse charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned seope and timing of the audit and signilicant audit findings, including any
sigrificant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

= We also provice those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical reguire ments regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and ather matters that may reasorably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safegaards.

From the matters cammunicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significarce in the zudit of the standalone firancial statements
of the currenl period and arc Lherefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circamstances, we determine that a matter should nol be

>
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communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest berefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Oroer”} issued by the
Central Government in tooms of Section 143{11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B”
statement ar the matters specified in parzaraphs 3 and 4 of the Oroer.

2. We enclose our report in terms of Section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks
of the books and recards of the company as we considered approprizte and according to
the information and explanaticn given ta us, in the “Annexure C° on the directions and
sub directions issued by the Comptroller and Audilur General of Ingiz u/fs 143(5) of the
Companies Act 2013

3. As required by Section 113(3) of the above wo roport that
aj We have sought and obtained all the informaticn and explanations which 1o the best
af aur knowledge and belief were necessary for the surposes of aur audit,

bl In aur opinion, proper books of accuunt as required by law bave beer kept by the
Company and so lar, as it appears fram aur examination of Lhase books

t] The Balance Sheet, the Slatcment of Profit and Loss dea't with ay this Reaort are in
agreament with the relevant books of account

di Inour opirion, the zforesaid linencial statements comply with the indian Accounting
Standards specificd under Section 133 of the ActL

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the direclors as on March
31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified 25 on March 31, 2021 from seing appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) ol the Act,

fi With respect to the adequacy of the inlernal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating eHectiveness of such controls, refer Lo
our separate Report in "Anresure A", Qur report cxprosses an unmodfied opinion
on the adequacy and operating cffectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controls over financizl reparting.

gl With respect to the other matters w be included in tre Auditor's Report in
accordance with the reguircments ot section 19716} of the Act, 17 aur spinion and
to the best of our infurmation znd accerding to the explanatians given Lo us, the
remuneration paid/provided by the Compary to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 ol the Act,

I © -




h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auodilor’s Reporl in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies [Audit anc Auditors) Rues, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. Companyhas disclosed the impact of pending litigations onits financial position
ir Motes Lo ils finzncial statements.
i. Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
*ar which there were any materizl foreseeable losses,
iii.  There has oeen no delay in Lransferring amounls, recuired Lo be trenslerred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company

- FORBALWINDER ASSQCIATES
. Chartered Accountants
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©CAGaurav Thanar

{Partnar)

{(Membership No. 0957107}
{FEN: 014822M)
LUDIN: 210957 108AAAIHO315
Place: Mohali

Dale: 27.08.2021
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ANNEXURE "A"™ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1{f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reparting under Clause (i} of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ["the Act”)

We have audited the internzl financial controls over financial reporting of Chandigarh
Internztional Airport Limited {"the Campany”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining interral financial
controls besed on the internal contral over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Cantrols Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of [ndia. These responsibilities incluce the design, implemeantation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating elfectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficiert conduet of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguardirg of its assels, Lhe prevention and cetection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and comploteness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial infarmation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsioility is to expross an opinion on Lthe Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our zudit. \We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance
Mote") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
fuditing prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the cxtent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
reguire that we comply with cthical requirements and plan and perform the zudit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financia
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in al
material respects. Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain sucit evidence about
the adequacy ol the internzl linancial controls system over financizl reporting and their
aperating effectiveness.
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Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
uncersiancing of internal financial controls cver financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and test'ng and avaluating the design and operating cffectiveness
of internal contro! bascd on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulticient and approprisle Lo provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reparting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is & process designed 1o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accorcance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

& company’s internal linancial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures Lthat:

(1) pertgin to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary Lo permil
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
zeeordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

13) provide reasonanle assurance regarding prevention or limely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Beczuse of the inherent limitations of internal financal contrals over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or impraper management averride of controls, materal
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial contrals over financial reporting ta future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial contral over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, ar that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinicn, to the best of aur information and according Lo the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material resaects, an adequate internal financial contro s system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal cantrol over financial reporting criteria
pstablished by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Nete on Audit af Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR BALWINDER ASSOUIATES

Chartered Accountants

; A ff
I L
N

CA Gaurav Thapar

[Partner)

(Membership No. 095710)
(FRN: 014822N)

UDIN: 21095710AA8ATHE215

Flace: Mohal®
Date: 27.08.2021




Annexure “B” To The Independent Auditor’'s Report

{Relerred Lo in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report af even date)

wi.

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b. The Campany has a regular program of verification of fixed assels Lo cover all
the ‘tems in a pnased manner over a period of 3 years which, in our apinion, is
reasonakle having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assels. Pursuant fo the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified
by the Management during the year. Accorcing to the information and
explanations given to us, no matcrial discrepancies were noliced on such
verification.

¢, According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by the title deeds of the immovable properlies are held in the rame
of the Company.

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified at regular intervals by the
Management and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion and accorcing to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loan or provided any guarantees and securities and
nence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given ta us, the Company hac not
accepted any deposits under Section 73 Lo 76 or any other relevant provisicons of the
Companies Act,2013 and the Companies [Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 | as
amended, with regards to deposits,

As per books of records, produced before us and explanation offered thereon, we are
of the oainion that, arima facie, the cost records and accounts prescribed by the
Central Government under Sub-Section (1) of Scction 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
have been made and maintained. We have however not made detailed examination
of the cosl records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

h
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vil.  Aceording to the infarmation and explanalions given to us, in resoect of statutory
dues:

(a] The Company has gencrally been regular in desasiting undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurznce, Income-tax, Goods ang
Services Tax, 5ales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Fxcise Duty, Professional Tax, Value
Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate
autharities.

(b} According to the infermation and explanations given to us, there were no undisputod
amounts payable in respect of Income-lax, GST and ether material statutory dues in
arrears were outstanding as al March 31,2021 for a period of more than six manths
fraom the date they became payable.

wiir, In our ooinicn énc according to the information and explanations given 1o Js, there
are no borrowings from financial institutions and the Company has not issued any
dehentures, hence reporting uncer clause [viii} of Lthe order is nat applicanle.

ix.  The Company has not raised moeneys by way of initia. public ofter or turther public
offer {including debtinstruments) ur term loans and hence reporting uncor clause [ix)
of the Qrder is not applicable.

¥.  Tothe best of our knowledge anc according Lo the information and explanations given
Lo us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud an the Compary ay its afficers
or emoloyees has been noticed or reported during the year.

x.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remunerilian in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule v
lo the Act,

xii.  The Company is not 2 Nidhi Company and hence reporting under cause [xii) of the
Order is not applicakla.

®iii.  Ir our opinion ard according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act for all transactions with
the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosec

in the financial statements elc. as required by the applicable Indian Accounting
Standards.

¥iv,  During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotrrent or private
placement of shares ar fully ar partly corvertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (xiv] of the Crder is not appliceble to the Company.

h
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xv.  Inour opinion and according o the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not enterec into any non-cash transactions with its
directors persons connected with them, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Qrder is
not applicable.

wwi.  The Company is not recuired to be regstered uncer section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934,

~ FDR BALWIMDER ASSCCIATES
~ Chartered Accountants

N

" CA Gadrav Thapar

(rartner)

(Membership Na. D5710}
(FRM: 014822NM)

UDIN: 270957 10AAAAIHS315

Place: Mahali
[Date: 27.08.2021
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Annexure "C” To The Independent Auditor’'s Repart

{Referred to ir paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatary Requirements’
sectior of aur report of even date)

1. | Whether the company has | Yes, the company has system in place to orocess
syslem in place Lo process all the | all the accounting transactions through IT Syster,
accounting transactions through | As there are ro accounting transactions outsice [T
IT System? If ves, the implications | system of the company, there exist no imaolications
of processing o  accountirg | of the processing of actowntng transactions
transactions oulside IT syslem on | outside [T system on tne integrity of the accounts,
the integrity of the accounts
along  with  the  financial
implications, il any, may be

| stated. I

2. | Whether there is any As per the information and representations
restructuring of gn existing loar  provided to us by the management, the company
or cases of waiverfwrite off of | hasnot borrowed any loan or deposits and as such
debts/loansfinterest ete. made | the same js not applicable Lo the cormpany.
by the lender to the company sue
to the company's inability to
repay the lecan? If wes, the
financial impact may be stated.

Whether such cases are properly
accounted for?
3. | Whether funds {grants/subsidy | Regarding accounting of funds:

ctc.) received [/ receivable for |

specific schermes fram
Central/State Government or its
agencies Were properly
accounled forfutilized as per its
term and  conditions. List the
cases of deviations,

the information and  representations
provided to us by the management the Ministry
of Commerce company has approved grant
amountirg to Rs.562 lakhs during Financial year
2018-19 under "Trade Infrastructure for Fxport |
Scheme (TIES)Y for “Setting up of Centre for
Perishable Cargo (CRC) “. Out of which company
had received in an amount of Rs281.00 lakhs
during FY 2018-19.The said amourt is shown in
Other Current Liabi'ities in comaliance to IND AS
20, |

AL per

During the FY 2000-21 since the amaunt has been
depeositec in separate 2ank accocunt, interest

amounting 10 Rs.15.03 lzkhs has accrued. This

armaunt aleng with the previeus accrued interest
of Bs.17.59 lakhs {pertzining to FY 19-20) has been
shown In 2 separate line item in Other Current
Lizhilities under Inlerast
Refundable”. Previously this ameount of accrued

“Governmenl Granl-
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intcrest was shown along with the Deferred Grant
amount and the same was to be deducted from
the balance grant receivable. However as per the
information provided Lo us, the amount of accrued
interest is to be refunded and as such the separate
line itam is created forit.

Regarding utilisation of funds:

During the FY 2020 21, the construction of the said

orgject has been started and an amount of

R=.288.06 Lakhs has been incurred and same is

been reflected in the Capital work in progress. As

per the terms of sarction, the company had Lo
| subxmit a utilizat’on certificate for the amount
' released immediately after utilization but not late
than 31.03.2020 ard &lso update utilization
certificale on PFMS  (EAT) Module. As per
irformation  provided to us ,no  utilization
cortificate or uploading in PFM% [EAT) module
could be done oy company till March 31,2020 as
no utilization of funds took place in FY 19 20.The
utilization of grant was done subsequently in FY
20-21,

FOR BAalWINDER ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

W oa
i ’q_\[jel“bw‘%

CA Gaurav Thapar
[Partrer)

[Membershio No. 095710)
(FRN: 014822N)

UDIN: 2109571048 IH3315

Place: Maohali
Date: 27.08.2021




BALWINDER ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Central Administrative Office:

F-125,

Phase VII-B, ([); 98140 BEG3E, 81948 82007
sactor /M e mail: admin@balwinderassosiates com
Mohali-1e0 071 wensitewww halwinderasscciates.com

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

We have conducted the audit of accounts of Chandigarh International Airport Limited for the
year ended 31.03.2021 in accordance with the direclions/sub-directions issued by the
Comptroller and General of India under Section 143 (5) & [6) of the Companies Act,2013 and
cerlify that we have complied with all the directions/sub-directions issued to us.

FOR BALWINDER ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Lk l;\ A ;-"""
' - CA Gayra® Thapar
[Partner)
(Membership No. 085710)
(FRN: 014822MN)
UDIN: 21095710AAANAIHS15

Place: Maohali
Date: 27.08.2021




Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
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(IR in lakhs)
it e S | e o S SRR e e R S
S Bl 00t e Maenatont | Mamhan e
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
i) Propserly, Plan. ard Eguipment Z R2ARZGH #1,304.77
i) Capiral work-in-progress 3 160424 Zel2an
I:I'.'J lnmngﬂia assers ather than Grooadawdll El 15970 24949
(d) Right to usc assees 5 #4307 LG
(&) Fionnecial Azsets
i} Loans 4] 3204 3294
I:.[_:I Delerred Tax Assels T - 308,28
iz Orther Mon-Current Assels ] - 7.0
Current Asscts
() Inwenrosies o 723 592
Ly Fioaneral Assets
ﬁ_II Trade Receivables 10 G56.H0 131440
{i:_:l Cash & Cask Fouivelers i HHA2U w4
(i} Bank nalances other thar (i) above 12 1B,7345.22 16,920,606
%) Uhthers 13 1,525,828 1,140.14
(€] Current Tax Assets 14 33501 1,300.39
(el Oiher Curzent Assets 13 1383 63541
Total Assers L7, 10477 1,05,7M0.77
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Eqguity
() Equity Share Capial 1 G0244.94 00, D444
b € rher Houiy 17 5,372.31 3,8095.76
Laabilities
MNon-current liabilities
() Financial Liabilines
i) Bormowings 18 = ;
s Onhiers 1% 3.5 1,892,032
(b 1ererred tas halaliaes 7 4303
(£} Crher non-current habalines i} 156160 0T 08
Currcat Lighilities
(a3 Prnancizl Lizbilines
i) COrrhess gl 344040 TN
(I Exher cverent liablines 22 493,20 43185
1 Prowesieoas 23 101755 107,55
Tatal Equity and Liabilities 1,07 168,77 1,05,790.77
Significant Accounting Policies 1

‘The notes referred 1o above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

For Balwinder Associantes For and on behalf of the Board of THrectors
Chartered Accountants

I\ -
WO %@\nﬂm :t..;"% 2
{CA Ganreav Thapar) A i (Rukesh Dembla) i
Parcnece Campany Secretasy Cry Charernun
M Mo 095710
FRX 014823
Place = MMahal
Dare : 37083021

LIIJL“-;:llﬁﬂquBAﬁﬁhIHqBIS
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended March 31, 2021
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{(IMNH in lakhz)
 Parricolars e | Note | ~ YearEnded | Year Ended
e R T e e | Mmhm,mm ~ March 31, 2020
Income
i Bevenue from Opearions 24 6,715,773 10,93452
r)  Orher lneome 5 1,119.82 1,009, (W}
Total Income 7.8658.57 12,053.52
Expenses
1) Hmployee Beoefirs Dxpenses 20 35254 239,70
Hy  Finance cost 27 123 40 14305
i) Drepreciton sod smortzation expenscs it 306254 3537149
vl Othes Expenses 29 1,924.46 3,380.26
Total expenses §,603.15 7,436,510
Profit before exceprional items and tax 20242 401702
Exceptonal Trems - -
Profit Before Tax 2,202.42 4,617.02
Tax expense
- Curent Tax 41520 0581
- Tess: MAT Credit - (/25,36
- Defrered Tax 28069 1.227.21
Total Tax Expenses 72591} 1,207 69
Profit for the period from continuing operations L476.33 3,319.33
Peofic/ (loss) Lo disconinued operadons - 2
Tax expense of dscontinued operations
Profit from discontinued operations after tax - -
I Profit for the year 1,476.53 3,319.33
I Other Comprelhensive Inoome
i Trems thar will not be reclassified to pofit or loss
- Premeasurements ol the defined benefis plans . -
Tess: Tncome Tex on above - =
) leems char will be reclassified 1o prof er loss -
Total Comprehensive Income tor the period [T +11) 1,476.53 3,319.33
Earnings per equiry share
(1} Basic 15 .34
(2 Drilured 015 .34

The notes referred o above form au integeal part of the standalone finanecial srarements.

; . _Eqr Balwinder Associates For and on hehalf of Board of Directors
e Clia'm'ércd Accountanrs
1 w{gﬁ X we{ o @,,ﬂ‘:.f
a urav Thapar) §1rﬂ . ur} {Rakesh Dhembla) (1. urthy)
Pa.rrnr_‘r Company Secretary CFD “hatrman

M No, 095710
FRM 0148220
Place : Mohal
Date - 27.08.2021

LN 21095 TIOAAAATHARIS
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited

Statement of Changes In Equity for the period ended March 31, 2021

A. Equity Share Capiral

{INR in lakhs)
Bﬁlancc as ar r’ipl.'il l. 2[)20 96,944 94
Clanges in share capital during the year -
Talance as ar March 31, 2021 6,%44.94

(ITNR in lal:hs}
e T e e e e R e
Balaru:e as at ﬂpu:ll 1, 2019 06,4, 04
Chanpes i share eapital during the vear -
Balance as ac Maech 31, 2020 96,944.94

B. Other Eoguiny

For the vear ended March 31, 2021

Fradil fur the year
her Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Tncome for the year
Add: Travsfer o reseive duzog the peood
Less: Appropriations

Drividlenels

Creneral reserve

3,805.78

1.476.53

1,476,532

537231

537231

2021

Balance at the end of the reporting period March 31,

For the year ended March 31, 2020

on April 1, 2019
Drofit for the year
Dther Comprehensive Trcome
Toral Comprehensive Tneome for the vear
Adé: Transfer w0 reserve during the period
Lesss: Appronriarions

Dividends

General reserve

Balance at the beginning of the FCPORTing period as

331933

57045

3,519.3%

3,895.78

53,895.78

2020

Balance at the end of the reporting period March 31,

380578

3,805.78
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended March 31, 2021
(TNR in lakhs)

ke LA ~ For the ended For the vear ended
Particulars  March 'E-r;fmn March 31, 2020
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Profir/ Loss before tax 220242 4,617.02
Adjustment for:- .
Frofit an Sale of Assets | .86} -
Drepreciation 3,062,824 3,3711.19
Interest Income (403 (R0
Fawr Valuaron CGain 11776} (13H.13)
Finance Cose 1177 138.15
Reversal of Liabiliry - (28,57
Bad Dichrs - 21.89
Tiiteresr cosr on lease ?-!'-m e ﬁ_'EJI‘.I
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changres 4,3&&52" g 7093.65
Adjustment for working capital changes:-
Loventone: a0 .31
Lrade Recervables 657,60 (555,60
Orther Curzent Financial Assers (631,41 6584
Other Won Current Financial Assets - (8.5
Orther Current Assets 619.58 (5005598
Current Tax Asser 03338 (136.45)
Other Mot Curtent Assets 7.0 ERLLY
Crther Cureent Fingnedal Lisbilies 1,457,495 (46744
Cither Currenr iahalinies 31.32 43,02
Orther Current Provisions - 107.55
Crther Mon-Cuerene Financia, Laabibiey (1,208.60) 135141
Chther Mon-Current Liabilines {341.51) 23820
Cash gencrated from Operating Activites 5.830.43 7.165.03
Income tax paid SRR [795.84
et Cash Generated from Operating Activities 5,450,47 6,3649.19
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTIMNG ACTIVITIES
Purchase ot Praperty, Plant and Equipinent (4.620.35) (37143
Purchags of latangible Assets - (24.53
Sale of Property, Plant and Eqguipinent 245 6,31
Realization/ (Tayments) For Investments [/ Bonds [/ Bank
Depnsirs 71.B15.57) 3,231.87)
Capatal Wark T Progress Q48,54 [1,700.85)
Intersst Income B47.36 Ta3TE
et Cash From lnvesling Activides {4,646.54) (6,738.59)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINAMNCING ACTIVITIES
Imtetest om prants recerved during the voar 1203 17.5%
Lease papmenrs (22407 (21.75)
MNet Cash From Financing Activities {7.04) (4.16)
D. Met changes in Cash & Cash cquivalents 802.89 (373.50)
E. Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents B4 453.%6
F. Closing Cash & Cach Equivalents B53.29 20.40

®




Chandigarh International Airport Limited

Component of Cash and Cash Equivalent

(IR in Iakhs}

Patliculars Fumheymmdhd

e e March 31,2021 A

Balanees with Banks 15.29 80,40

Bank deposit having osigmal mmatarity of less than 3 months BOE.O0 -
88329 8040

Component of Bank halances orher than cazh and cash

equivalents

Fised - Ve Depeosil 18,736,322 1692060

2 Fefer Mote 11 for Cesh and Cash equivalents.

For Balwinder Associates
Charered Accountanis

9’\ cw”’l( H vattlore

(CA li_:'uumtr ‘I'hapar) VI ur
Partner Compm}f Secretacy
il Poo, 095710

FRIN O11822N

Flace : Mooali

Date 1 27.08.2021

UDIN: 21095 10AR ANT HASIS

L. Searemeat of Cesk Flows kas heen prepared using Indivecr Methed 23 per Ind AS 7 Sraremenr of Cash Plows,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

a.

{Rakesh Diembla)
CFC

7

urthy)
Chazoman
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CHANDIGARH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED

NOTE 1. COMPANY INFORMATION & SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICILS

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Chandigarh Intemational Arport Led, (CHIALYL has been incorporated an 287 January,
2010 a5 a joint venture company undes Companies Act, 1956 by Airports Authorite of India
(AT in association with Punjab Govesnment through Greater Mohali Area Development
Authority {GMADAY and Harvana Government through Harvana Shohan Vikas Pradhikaran
(HSVT) erstwhie Haryana Uthan Development Authority {HUDA)Y o operate and maineain
Chandigarh Intesnational Mrport which has come up with 2 new state of art [nternatonal
Adrpart at Moheli, Punjel. As per the Joint Veature Agreement, the equity contribution s in
the rato of 51.00%, 24.50% and 24305 respectively by AAL GMADNA wnd HUDA AATs
contribunon towards its share of equity Is constructon of the New Terminal Budding and
albed works, GMADN and HEVT heve provided land for the said constrection towards ther
equity contribution. CHIAL, has commenced commeranl operations on 19" October, 2015,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The Montstry of Corporate Affairs MCA) notfied the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standands} Rules, 2015 on 16 February 2015 laying down the soadmap for implementation of
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) o Indian Companies other than banking companies,
insurance comparucs and noa-banking financial companies (NBICs). As per the roadmap,
Ind A5 15 applicable to Chandigarh International Adrport Limited from the fnancial year
commencing on or after Apnl 1, 2017, However, CHIAL adopred Ind AS in financial year
2015-16 volantarily.

The financial staterments have been preparcd on accrual basis of accounting under historical
cost convenden, excepl {for following fnancial assers and financial habthies which are
toseasured at far value:

* MNon-curren! fimancial assets such as security deposits are measured at Fair value at initial
recognition.

* MNone currene fnancia] alilnes such s securily deposits from customers and lease renals are
meazured at fir value at initdal recopnition,

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requres management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reperted amounts of assets and habil:tes,
revenue and expenses, and disclosure of contirgent assets and lisbilities a1 the date of the
financial statements. Actual results may differ from those estimates und sssumptions, due o
changes m facts and circumstances. Managemeni reviews estimates on an ongoing basis using
curtemily available information and any revision in the estimate is recagnized 10 the peried in
which the same is dewermoned.

The financial statements are rounded off in lakhs. The financial statements comply with all
apolicable INTI AS.




SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment up to March 31, 2015 were carned in the balance sheet in
accordance with Indizn GAAP. The company has elected to avail the exemnption granted by
TN AS 101, “Trst dme adopton of IND AS" to repard those amounts as decmed cost at
the date of the transidon to INI? AS (Le. as on April 1, 2(M3).

PPE are srated at their original cost of acquisition less accomulated depreciation. The cosr
includes cost of subsequent improvements thereto including taxes, duties, freipht and other
incidental expenses relaved to acquistion and nstzllation of the assets comeerned. Advances
pad towards scquisition of sssets, outstanding at each balance sheet dare are shown under
capital advances. The cost of fxed asseis ool rendy Tor s intended use onosuch dawe 15
disclosed as Capital work-in-progoess,

Spares parts, stand-by equipments and servicing cquipments procured along wath the Plane &
Mackinery or subsequently which meets the recogrition eriteris, are capimalized and added in
the carrying amount of such item, The carrving amount of those spare parts that are replaced
15 derecopnized when no futute economic benefits are eapecled from their use or upun
disposul. Other machinery spares are teated as “stores & sparcs” forming part of the
IOV,

If the cost of the replaced part or eatlier inspection is not available, the estimated cost of
sirclar new partsfinspection is used as an indication of whar the cost of the existing part/
Inspection component was when the item was acquired or inspection carried out.

Depreciation is provided on a Straight Line Method ("SLM?) over the useful lives of the assers
as per Compantes Aot Zﬂ'l.W'manﬂ_gemem’ﬁ estimates. Depreciation for assets purchased [/
sold during a period is proportionately charped. Purscant o this policy, the rates of
depreciation determined by the Management are as set out below:

Assets Rates of Dep.
———— i e e %
N T At i g
Roads, Bridges & Culverts (Carpeted) - 19%
Roads, Bridges & Culverts (Non Carpeted) | 31.67%
Bwld.m.g Terminal/Other Bmld.m.ga e T
~ Buildings — Temporary L 3L67%
Boundary Wall L 317
| Computers & LT Hardware & Access | 31.67%
fnlantcr% & IT. - ‘?or\rn\. D 2 T S e MU e g 15.83%
[*ant and '\-‘.[a.clum,n ,-"X Ray Haggﬂgc ‘*:nmn_m T 633
Tools E:E:impmcm:. / Office ;XP:Lam;:\- . R 19%,
Fuarniture and Fixweres Office / Orher” lhﬂn Office 0.50M"% -
| Vehicles — Cars & Jeeps/Motor Cycles ' 11.86%/9.50%
Llectrical Installarions i | 9.50%




| r

The asscts having a cost of R 5000 or less are charged off to expenditure in the yesr of
avment, Residual walae of an asser i taken 5% of the ongingl cost of the asset
Pt it

Liepreciation methnd, useful lives and residual values are reviewed petindically, inchuding ar
each financial year end.

2. Intangible Assces and Depreciation

Intangihle assets sequired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Fallowing
in:tial recopnition, intangible sssets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortizaton and
accumulated impatrment losses. Tntangible assets are recognized only if it is Prnbabln: that
ferure cconomic bencfits that are ausbutable o the asset will fow o the eaterprse.
Computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and pur
to use the specilic software. Oneratng software is capitalized and amortized along with the
related fxed szaer,

The depreciable amount of an intangible asset with a finite useful lfe shal! be allocated on a
systematic basis over its ascful bfe. Amortization shall begin when the asset is avalable Ffor
use, e when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the munner intended by management. Lhe smortization method used shall reflect the pattern
in which the asset’s fumure cconomic benefits are expected to be consumed by the eatity, TE
that pattern cannot be determined reliably, the straipht-line method shall be used. Usebul hfe
has been raken based on the estiimeares determine by the management.

Rescarch costs are expensed as incurnad. Dievelopment expenditres on an individual project
are recognized as an ntangible assew when the company can demonstrate:

® ‘The technical feasibility of completing the intang:ble asset so that rthe asset wil be available
tor use or sale
Its intention to complese and ite ability and intention te use or scll the asset

o How the asset will penerate future ceonomic benefis

» The availability of resources o complete the asse

» The abiliy 10 measure reliably the expenditure dunng developrment

Fullowing initial recogmiior of the development expenditure as an asset, the assct 15 carmed at
cost less any accunulated amortizanon and accumulated impairment losses. Amortizadon of
the asser beging when development is comblete and the asset is available for vse. It is
amattized over the period of expected foture benefit. Amoriizaton expense is recognized in
the statement of profir and loss,

Druring the period of developiment, the usset is tested fornimpairrment anmuaally,
3. Fair valhie measurement
Fair walue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paad (o transies o Dabiliy 1noan

orderdy tansaction between market paraapants at the measurement date, Normally ar tmal
recopniton, the transaction price is the best evidence of faw value,

However, when the Company determines that transaction price does not represent the fair
value, it uses mier-aka valuation fechiigues tal are approprizte o the clrcomstarces ard for
which sufficient duta are svailable (o measure [alr value, maximising the use of relevan
ohservable mputs and minimistng the wse ol unobservable mnpurs,




All financizl assets and fnancial labilides for which fawr value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorsed within the fair value hierarchy, This categorisation is
based on the lowest level input rhat is significant to the fair value measurerment as 2 whale:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities,

* Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant o the fair
value
Measurement is divectly or indirectly observable,

* Level 3 — Valvation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value
Measurement 15 unobservalle.

Firmncial assets and financial liabilides that are recognised ar fair value on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categarisation at the end of exch reporting period.

Financial assets

A financial asset includes inter alia any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity
or contractual oblipation to receive cash or another financial assets or o exchange Enancial
assel or financial kabiliy under condition that are potentially favourahle to the Company, A
fdnancial asset is recognized when and only when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets of the Company comprise cash and cash equivalents, Bank Balanees,
Advances to employees/ contractors, security deposit, clims recoverable ete.

a. Classification

The Company classifies its finandial assets in the following categorics:
L at amortized cost,

i at fair valae through other comprehensive income (OC1), and

il at fair value through profit or loss

The classification depends on the fellowing:
{n) The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
(b) The contractual cash flow charsctenstics of the iinancial asset,

b. Tnitial recognition and measurement

Al financial assets except trade receivables are recognised imdally at fair value and in the case
of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transacnoen costs that are
attributable to the acquisiion of the financial asset, Transaction costs of financial assers
carned at fair value through profir ar lnss are expensed in Statement of Profit or Loss. Where
transaction price is not the measure of fair value and fair valve is determined using a valuagon

method that vses data from ohservable mazket, the difference between transaction price and




fair value is recognized in Statement of Profit or Toss and in other cases spread over life of
the Enancial mstrument using effective interest rate method,

The company mezsures the trade recervables at their transaction price, if the trade recevables
do not antain a significant fnancing component,

c. Subsequent measurcment

After initial measurement, fnancial assers classifed at amortsed cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using BIR method. Amorised cost is caleulated by raking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integzal part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included n finance income n the profit or loss,

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are at cach repotting date
at fair value. Fair value changes are recognized in OCL Howeves, the COMpany Tecogrizes
Interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign excharge gain or loss i the
meome statement. (On de-recogrition of the financial asset other than COuItY Instruments,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised i OCI is reclassified 1o ineome statements,

Any financial asser that does not meet the criteria for classification as at amaortized cost or as
financial assets at fair value throuph other comprehensive income, is classified as fnancisl
assets at taw value through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profic or loss
are fair valued st each reporting date with all the changes recognized in the income statement.

d. De-recognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of & finarcizl asser or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derccognised when:

*  Uhe nghts to teceive cash flows from the asser have expired, or

*  The company has tansferred ire vights 1o recetve cash flows from the asset or has assemed an
abligation to pay the received cash flows in full without mareriel delay 1o a <hird party under a
‘pass through' armnpement; and either &) the company has trensferred substandally all the
tisks and rewards of the asser, or (b} the company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the rsks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

e. Impairment of financial usscts

The company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (101 model for the
financizl assers which are nut fair valued through profit or loss, Loss allowance for trade
receivables with ne simificant financing component is measured a1 an amount equal o
lifetime ECI.. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measared at an amoun:
coual 1o the 12 month HCL, unless there has been o significant increase in credin risk from
nitial recogniton i which case those are measured ot litetime FCT. ‘The amount of expected
eredit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the renorting date to
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the amount that is required 10 be recogrized = recognized as impairment gain or loss in profi
or loss.

5. Storcs / Spares

Stores/spares other than recagrized as property, plant &I {uiptments are treated as invenlory,
which are charged to the Starement of Profit and T.oss as and when they arc consumed.

The costs of ourchase consist of the purchase price including dutics and taxes {ather than
those subsequently secoveralile by the enremrse from the taxing suthorities), freight inwards
and otker expenditure directly astnbutable 1o the acquisition. I'rade discounts, relates, dury
deawbicks and other similss wems e deducted in determining the costs of purchase.

The balance of inventory at the end of year, if any, 1s valued on First in First out basis,
6.  Revenue recognition

Effeetive from Apdl 1, 2008, Ind-AS 115 has been notfied by MCA which establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is w be
recogatsed. CHIAL has adopred Ind AS 115 from 1% April 2018 using the modifed
approach,

* Revenue is recognized on savsfacton of performance obligawtion upon tansfer of control of
promised praducts or services to customers in ar amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

* The Company satisfies a performance oblipation and recognises revenue vver tme, if one of
the lollowing crreria is met

L. The custamer simultancously receives and consumes the benefies tovided by the Company's
¥ ¥ ¥
pesformance as the company performs; or

The Company’s performance creates or cohances an asset that the customer contzols as the
assel 15 created or enhanced; or

£

A The Company's performance does nol create an asset with an altematve use: to t1e Company
and an entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Far performance obligations where one of the above conditiens i not mel, revenue is
recognised at the point in tme at which the performance obligation is sansfed.

* The company uses Tnput/output Method to measure tn entiny's progress towards complete
satisfacton of a performance obligation sausfied over dme.

* Revenue 15 measured based on the transaction orice, which is usdated at each reporting
pedied. It is the consideration, adjusted for volome discounts, service level credits,
pesfotmance bonuses, price coneessions and incentives, 1f any, as specified in the contract
with the customer, Revenue also excludes txes collected from customers.

Aeronautical Revenue incudes revenue from zli regulated charpes levied ar CHIAL e
Parking Charges, User Developmen: Fee, aad Cergo (X Bis Screeming Charges) sre being
recognized at the rates prescribed by Airport Economic Regulstory Authority (ATRAY &
Common user terminal equipment charges(CUTE) and Bapgage reconcilindon system (BRS) H




fee are recopmized as per the contmot raes. srension of Watch houss is charged as per
applicable rates. User Development Fees is recognized in respect of each embarking
passenger at s specified rate as approved by ARRAL

Mon-Aeronautical Revenue means all revenue streams other then Acronsutical Revenue. The
same consists of (i) revenue from concessions (i) rents and land leases; (i) food and
beverage concessions; (v) utility charpes; and (%) other nonaviaoon relared chatges are
recopnized based an the wrms of contractual agresment,

Interest is recognised using the time proportion method based on rates mmplicit in the
transactiem. Award fees and tender fees are recopised on an acerual basis n accordance with
the terims of the relevant Arrangement,

7. Retirement and other Employee Benefits

The emplovees on the roll of the company are an deputation, cost reimbursement basis Fom
Adrports Authority of India (AAL). The statutory deductions towards retirement benefits in
respect of these emplovees are remitted o AAL

The cost of deployment on cost reimbursement basis from AAT has heen hooked based on
gross amount reimbursable to AAL in respect of those emplovees. "Uhe lability for retirement
and other emplovee benefits are booked in AAT books for these emplovess,

LR Teases

The Company assesses at contract meeption whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That
is, if the contract conveys the tight to control the use of an identified asset for a nerind of
ume m exchange for consideration.

As a lessec

The Company applies a single recognition and measurernent approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. Lhe Company recoprizes lease liabilities
e make lease payments and nght-of-use assess representing the mght to use the underlving
assers.

Righr-of-use asscts

The Company recagnises righi-of use assets a1 the commencement date of the lease fi.e., the
date the underlying assct is available for usc). Right-of use assets are messured ar cost, less
any accumulared cepreciation and impairment losses and acjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilices. The cnsi of rghtotuse assets includes the zmount of lease liabilities
recogmised, mital direct costs incurred  and  lease pavments made st or before the
commencement date less any lease ncentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of (he ussets. The nghi-of-use assets are also
subject to impairment.




T.ease liaknlitics

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease rental lizbilites
measured ar the present value of lesse poymens o be made over the lease term. The lease
paymaents include fixed paveents (ncluding in-scbstance fized pavments) less any lease
incentives receivable, varable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected 1o be paid under residual value guarantees. The Company vses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit ia the lease
is ot readily determinable,

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applics the short-term lease and low value assets recognition. Lease payments
on short rerm leases and lesses of low value assers are recagnised as expense on a straight line
hasis over the lense term,

As alessor

Lease s classified as a Enance lease if 10 transfers substantally all the risks and rewards
ncidentz] o pwnership and an operatng lease is a lease other than a Anance lease.

Whether a lease is o finance lease or an cpotatng lease depends oo the substance of the
transaction rather than the form of the contact. Taamples of stuatons that mdmvidually or in
combinaticn would normally lead o a lease being classified as a finance lease are:

{a) The lease anstess ownership of the asset wo the lessee by the end of the lease term;
{(hi The lessee has the option to purchase the asset ava price that is expected 10 be sufficiently
lower than the fair value ar the date the opion becomes exercisable for it 1o be reasonalbly

certain, at the incepton of the lease, that the notion will be cxercised;

(£} The lease werm is for the major part of the economic life of the asset ever if dde is aat
transferred;

(d} At the inception ef the lease the present value of the mimimam lease payments amounts o
at leest substanually all of the fair value of the lesed asser; and

{e) The leased assets are of such a specizlised rature that only the lessee can use them without
major modidoatons

Lease income from aperatng leases is recognized it income on a steaight-line basis over the
lease term of relevant lease,

9. Taxes
Current income tax

Cutten! incorme tax assets and labiliies are measured ar the amoont expected to be recovered
from o paid toothe taxation aathorities. Uhe tax rates and sy laws used o compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enzeted, at the reporting date in the
countties where the company operares and gonerates laxable income,




Current ingome mx relating to items recognized ouside profin or loss s recognised ousde
profit or loss [either o other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax tems are
recognized In correlation o the underlving transacton either in OCT or direatly in equity.

Menagement perindically evzluates posinons takenin the tax retaens with respect to situations
in which applicabls tax repulacions are sulvect to interpretation and establishes Provisions
wherte appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferrad tax s recopmised on differences between the caryving amounts of asses and
liabilities in the company's financal statcments and 1he correspondings tax bases used o the
computation of faxable profit and are accounted for using the balance sheet Hability methad.

Lieferred rax liahilities sre generally recogmsed for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets sre generally recognised for all deductible tercporary differences, unused
tax loszes and uwnused tax credits to the extent thar it is probsb’e that fure taxable profits
will be available agains: which those deducoble temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be wilised. Such assets and labilittes are not recognised if the
teraporary difference asises from the initial recogrition of an asset or liability in a rransaction
that at the ome of the rransaction affects neither the taxable profit of loss nor the accounting
profit or loss.

The carrying amount of defersed tax assets 12 reviewed at each halance sheet date aad reduced
b the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient tasalle prodits will be wvailable
apainst which the remporary differeners con be utihsed.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates thar are expected ro anply in
the period in which the lability is sertled or the asset realised, based on tax mates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the halance sheet date. The
measurement of deferred tax babilites and sssets reflects the tax consequences that would
fallow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, (o recover or
settle the carrying amount of is assers and Habilides,

Deferred income tmx assets and habilimes are offse when there is a legally enforeeable right to
offser current tax assets apainst current fus lbilives, and when the defesred income mayx assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty on either the axable
eatity of different saxable endtics where there is an intendon to settle the balances onoa net
basis.

10.  Earnings per share

The basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profie/loss alter
tex, antrburable to equity sharcholders for the yvear by the weoghted average number of equity
shares cutstanding during the year.
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Cash flow statcment

Cash flows are reporied using the indirect method, whereby net profit/loss before mx 13
adiusted for the effects of transactions of a non cask natare and any deferrals or acormls of
past or future cesh receips or payments, The cash flows from operatng, invesong and
financing setivities of the Company are sepregated,

Current versus non-current classification

The company presemts assets and labiitges in the balance sheet based on current/ non
current classificaton. An asset 15 treated as currenr when 1t 15

Fapecred ro be realiwed or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operaung cvcle

Held primarily for the purpose of tading,

Lzxpecred o be realived within twelve months afier the reporting pedod, or

Cash or cash equivalent anless restricied from being exchanged or used to settle a Hability for
at least twelve months afier the reporting period

Al other assers are classifed as non carrent

A Lability 18 current when:

It 15 expected to be seuled i normal operating eyele

It 15 held primarily for the purpose of trading

It 15 due to be settled within twelve months after the reporticg period, o

There is w0 unconditional nght o defer the sertlement of the lisbility for at least twelve
tnunths after the =eporting period

The company classifics all other labilities as non-current.
Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions

Prowisions sre recognised when the company has a present oblipation {lepal or constructve)
as a result of a past cveay, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodyving economic
benefits will be required 1o sertle the obligatior and a reliable estimate can be made o the
amount of the obbgation, When the company expeets some or all of & provision o be
reimbursed, (or csample, wnder an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recopnised as a
sepatate asset, hut only when the reimbursement is virtually cortain, ‘The expense relating to a
proviston is presented i the statenent of prolic and loss net of any relmbursemen:.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pretax rate thar reflects, when appropuate, the rsks specific to the labilite. When
discounang iz used, the increase in the provision due to the passsge of tme is recopnised as a
finanee cost.

Contingent Liability

Comtingent Lability is meant for caums, linpation, assessment, fnes, pensliivs, ero are
recopnised when it is probable that a lability to be incurred, and the amount can be estmared

relably,
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17.

Impairment of asscts

The Company asscsses at cach halance sheet date whether there 15 any indication that an asset
mav be impaired. T any such indication exisis, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset. For an asset that dees not generate largely independent cash nflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-geremting unir to which the sscet belongs. Tf
sach recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash peneratng, unit
o which the asset belongs is less than Qs carrying amount, the carrying amount is redoced 1o
s recoverable amount The reducton s treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in
the Statement of Profis and Loss. IF at the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a
previously assessed impatrment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed
and the asset s reflected at the recoverable amount, An impairment loss is reversed oaly to
the extent that the carrving amount of asset does not exceed the net book value that would
have been determuned; if no impairment loss had been secogaised,

Investments

Long-term investments are carried at cost less provisien for diminutoen, other than temporary
diminution in the value of the mvesiments.

Charrent mvestmnents are cartied at e Twer of cost and Tair valee, The camparison of cost
and fair value is cartied outl separately in respect of cach investment,

Government Crranis

Ciovernment grants are not recognised wnol there 15 reasonable assurance that the Company
will comply with the conditions attached to them and that the prants will be received.
Ciovernten granis are recognised inthe Steement of Profic and Loss on g systemane basis
over the years in which the Company recognises as cxpenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended 1o compensate ar when Pcrfﬁrmancu r:}b]igg.ﬂuns are met.

Government grants, whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, consiruct
or otherwise acquire non current assets are recognized and disclosed as ‘deferred income’
under non-cutrent liability in the Balance Sheet and transferred to the Statement of Profic and
Losss omoasvstemane and ranonal basis over the nseful lives of the related asses,

Tlze of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management
to make estimates, Judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and
assumptions affect the applivation of accountng pelicies and the reported amonts of assers
and labilines, the disclosures of contingent assets and habilines ac the daie of financial
statemnents and reporred amounts of revenues and expenses during the perind. Application
of zecountng policies that reguire oritical accoumting estimates nvolving complex and
subjectve Judgements and the use of assumptions in these finarcial statements have heen
disclosed in MNote 171 Accountnys estimates could change from period 1o period. Actua!
results could differ from those estimales. Appropriate {;han_gr;s m esoumates are made as
menagement becomes aware ol changes m circumsiances 5u1_-mundj.ng the ecstimares.

Changes in estunates are reflecred in the financia] statements o the period in which changes

L

are mace and, if material, therr offects ave disclosed in the aotes 1o the fnancial statements.




17.1 Critical accounting estimates

The following arc the crideal judgements that the Company has made 0 the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect an the
armounls recogmised 1 the financial statement. The following are the esamares used during
the vear

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and cquipment represent a sigmificant
proportion of asset base of the company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation s
derived after determining the estimate of an assets expected useful life and the expected
residual value ar the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of company’s asscrs
are deternuned by Schedule 1T of Companies Act 2013,

Provisions: Provisions are determined based on management estimate required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date.

Contingent liabilities: Conangent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of
management/independent experts. These are reviewed ar each balance sheet date and are
adjusted to reflect the currene management estimate.

Contingent  Assets: Contingent assets are disclosed on the hasis of judgment of
management/ independent experts.

For M /s Balwinder Associates For and on behall of the Board of Directors
- Chartered Accountants
D A O
(Cﬂ urav Thapar) {Avneet Kaur) (Rakesh Dembla)
Partner Company Secremary CFO
Membership No, 095710
FRIN 014822N
Place: Mohali

Thate: 27 08,2021
UDIN: 2109510 AAA NTHASS
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Chandigarh International Airport Limuted
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Caupital Work- Ln- Progress (INR in lakhs)
: Balance as at April| Additions/Adjustments | Capitalized during | Balance as at March |
Eastipnlase 1, 2020 during the yeat the vear 31, 2021
Civil & Orher Works® 251280 3645957 =08 14 16429
Tatal 72,612.80 3,649.57 4,598.14 1,664.24 |
Capital Work- In- Progress {INER in lukhs)
ok Balance as at Apeil |  Additions/Adjustments | Capitalized during | Balance as at March
i 1, 2019 during the year the year 31, 2020
Civil & Other Warks® 91195 — zaaan 53155 361280
T otal 911,95 2,232.40 51155 261280

# Civil & Other Works as on 31.03.2021 pertains to followings:

—

LT )

- Addidonal CTST Baack Rs. 221.00 lakhs
CCAT-T Lightivg Systea A Rooway 11 Zide Bs LSS ks

- Constauctinn of Sourthem Zaxt Way Rs 830045 lakhs

4 Geond Tighring Faciline for Soucheen ot Way Rs. 36,81 lakhs

o = B} )

*#¥ Crvil & Other Works as on 31032020 pertains to followings:

- Merging Tdges of New Aprar With Taxiway | Link In Operational Area Rs. 2336 lakhs
- Constraction of Cargo Complex Rs. 288200 laghs
- Procuremenr of Nerwnrk Componenr Single Mede Fiber and Bwdtch s 108 lakhs

1. Supply Tnstallztion ' esting 2nd Commissionicg of 02 Yos of Tr. Line Baggage Screcning Svstems R 708.9% lakhs
2, Soil Testing for Southern Taxiway Rs.55 lakns

ST Nt

- Consoctien of Apron For 3 MNos Code 10 ype of Advciall Ks. 05,04 Jakhs,
- Modificarior of existing bagpage bandlng system Re 363,21 lakhs
- STTE of passenger hoarding hridge Ts 367 84 lakhs

6. Constroetion and Hlecerical work foe fxed finger Re 16128 lakhs

& Provizsion of additiona]l CI5F Barracks e 21,95 lakhs

9. Blectrical panel For escalators Rs. 215 lakhs,

- BTTE of high mast steeet lights poles, supely and layiog of cable LT panel Rs, 18,50 lakbs
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Chandigarh International Aieport Limited
Modes forming part of the Aoancial statcments

Intangible asscte other than Goodwill

(INR i lakhs)

Particulara | As at As at
| March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Computer Software
Qpening balanee 2e 2
Aclelition dunng e vear - 24.53
Deletion during che year
Closing balance 27.30 .30
Accomulated Amortization 23 83
Addition during the year 524 135
Deletion during the year & 4
Cl I halance 7.54 2.31

Met Block 18,70 24.99

In the previous years, the cmnpeany bas ke the resdual viloe ol some computer sofoware as 3% instead of Ml
Hepwrewer, the comoany has acknowledged the same mo e currens year and che amoves of additicnal
depreciannn telavog e previoas years of Rs. 0,14 lakhs has been account for in currens pear.

In the previous year, company bas segregued the miangible assets from the tangible assets as cequiced by

divigion 1 o schedale 171

Right 1o usc Assct

{(INR in lakhs)

Particulars As al As at
. March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Opening balance 10368 105,68
Adddinon dunng the yvear
D{']I.".‘Tll":ll"l d‘“ 1-|E I||_I :r'l_'ﬂr -
Closing balance 105.68 105,68
Accumulated Amortization 1R 233
Addition dunng the vear .69 .60
Deletion duriog the year -
Closing balance 2171 15.02
Met balance 83.97 .66

MCA has notfied TND AS 116 acd the same s offecmers from Apel 1, 20190CHIAL has applied the same &

recoguise e mphi 1o use asser and carresponding lebilio, Kindly refer -

Lavans

wile ne 34 {or the detatled discloscres.

(IR in lakhs)
' Particulars As at Az at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Security Deposits Becenvable- Onhers 3354 324
 Total 32.94 32.94

Conmpany have reclassilied due wmoun of security deposs receivable from erhess to loans i line with Schedule
L Company have wol performed the dizcomnring of the same as expected dare of relnd is net ascerminable,
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Chandigarh International Airport

Limited

Motes forming part of the Inancial starements

Dieferred tx assers/ (liahilities)

| ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 ——

Taefereed tax assets and liabilitics are attmbotable w e lollowmng (INR in lakhs)
Particulars As al As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Deferred Tax Liability
Propesty, plant and equipment and inengible assets {1,670y {1,394.48)
Liagehit to wse aned lease hakahiy o BT (5.06]
Sub Total (1.680.83) | (LA400.13)
Deferred tax Asscts
Uosheorbed Depreciton & brooghn forward Insscs -
Uazmortized preoperatve & preliminary Exp B
Sub Taowal - &
MAT Credit Eatitlement
MAT Credit 1,637,185 1,708.42
Sub Total 163714 1,708.42
Mer Detereed Tax Aascts/ {Liahility} - (43.65) 08, 28
Movement in deferred tax balances during the year ending March 3151 2021 {INR in lakhs)
Particulars Balance as at Recognised in Balance As at
s April 1, 220 peofit & loss March 31, 2021
Property, plant and equipment and intangible ,304.48) [AT7.61] [1,672.0u
ARSLTSE
gt to use and lease lakilin - [366) (3.0 .75
Total = (1,400.13} (280.69) (1,680,487
Movement in deferred tax balances during the year ending March 31st 2020 (T™R in lakhs)
Patticulars Balance as al Recognised in Balance As at
April 1, 2019 profit & loss March 31, 2020
Properoy, alant and equipment and inmngible 1,381.33) (293 1,304, 48)
sEnplE
Righr tr use and lease labiliry [3.006] (3.06]
Cnabsorbed Depreciavon 8 Drought forsard 1,190 R BRI
logses as pes [ncome Tax
Linarmormized preoperative & preliminary TH A0 [(AH.Aan}
exproses
Total {172.93) (1,227 21) (1,400.13)
Tax recognised in Statement of profit and Ioes (IMR in lakhs)
Particulars " For the year For the vear
Ended March 31, | Ended March 31,
2021 2020
Current income tax
Curtent year 343.20 TEaH
Lz MAT Credit - {723.36)
Sub Total (A) (44520 (T0.A8)
Deferred tax expense
Originarson goad roversal of temporsry dilferences (2R (1,237.21)
Sul Tatal {B) {230.69) (1,227.21)
Toual (A+B) (72590 (1,297.69)

o




Chandigarh Internarional Airport Limited
Motes forming patt of the financial statcments

74 Reconcilistion of effecuve tax males (TR in lakhs)
Particulars For the year Fur the year
Ended March 31, | Ended March 31,
2021 2020
Profie befors v 20142 4617.02
Enacted 1ax Rawe* 212 27.AD%
Computed Expecied Tax Fapenses 01,35 1,784 40
Tax Effect of
MAT paymenr - TR
Dizallowances under income raxes ATH .
Profit on sale of Ficed Assets [ET Y
Impact of depreciation (206300 -
Orthers Toclude Usansition Reseree) - [10.83)
Allepacsnces under income mxes {70 L]
Current Tax Provisions (A) 445,20 {100y
Currenr vear tax losses for whish no deserved tax csset recopnised
Defermed rax for the temporary differsoces 1,227.21
Deferred Tax Provision (B) - 1227201
Tax Expenses recognised in profit and lnss (A+R) 445.20 22121
Effective Tax Rare
¥ Erasted fersc raie for evens yeaw i 23N s gate i T3 sebarge i 4% con and i presiaer year 23% bae rade pler 7%
awreerye Sl % s
A Mher Non-Current Asacts {IMR in lakhs)
Particulars Fut the year For the year
Ended March 31, | Ended March 31,
2021 2020
Preprand Hxpenses - 700
Total B - 7.00
9 Inventory (INE in lalchs)
Particulars Az at As al
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Stores d Sparcs 123 5392
Tatal 7.23 5.92
9.1 Physical venleacon of the stores & spazes as on 31032027 have bren carried onr by the independent auditor
anc e discrepancy have Deen reported.
10 Trade Receivables - {ITMR in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
I March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Tzade recevables- Semrd Conridered Good LT LY 024
| I'rade l‘l.‘l:‘l:‘:t'}_tb]r_'s— [ msvenred Canriclereed Gl 29745 G611.89
Total GEGAD 1,314.40
0.1 lathe opson of the company, tade recevables a3 stated in the accounts will be realised in the ordinary course

of basmess.

h
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Motes forming part of the financial starcments

Cash & Cash Hguivalents

(TNR in lakhs)

Becurity deposits ' ‘ As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with Tanks 15.29 #0.40

Fized Depasic and Fmbarked Balances ‘ I

{Uhwdpimal matwrily loy i 3 monity,

‘Tutal { BH3,20 20,40

Bank balances other than Cash & Cash Eguivalens (TR in lakhs)

Particulars As at As al
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Bank balances other than above

Frwed Denosit and Bmbacked Balanoes 15,736.22 1692066

{filare thae T mpoathy Gt feis Maen 12 manthe)

| : Total 18,736.22 16,020.66

Mo lien on Fixed Deposrs s on 51052021

In the previous vear, Bank halarces other than Cash & Cash Houivelents has heen crezted as separals line item

in accordance with Scheduale 111

Other Coerenr Financial Assets (IR in lakhs)
Particulars * As ar As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Secured, Considered good)
Tnhilled Rewvenue 393,99 HILEB
{Uinzecured, Considered good)
Recoverable from Partes 199,52 L+ R
Arnount Recelvables From NASE] 351,54 12231
Imrerear arcued on deposis K1 314,57
Security Deposits Recetvable- Govl 30234 302,54
~ Total 1,826,898 1,140.14
Current Tax Assers (IMNR in lakhs)
Patticulars As al As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Tax Deducted at Source AY 200718 (Net of Provision for [neomse e 317.50
Tax)
Tax Deducted at Source AY 2018 19 MNer of Provision for Income - 342
Tex)
Tax Deduzted ar Source AY 2920 (Mer of Prevision for Income - AN0NG
Tex)
Tex Deducted at Source AY 2020-31 (Net of Frovision for Income 276.04 3547
Tax)
Tax Deducted st Source AY 2021-22 (Net of Provision for Income TeaT -
Tax;
Testal 356.01 l,.'i“"]ﬂ']‘

Inevrne s assessments upto Fuosncal Year 2007 18 (AY 2018 1Y) kave been completed and assessment order

for the same has been reccived.

1\
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Chandigarh Intetnational Airporet Limited
Motes forming part of the financial statements

15 iher Current Assets (IMNR in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 3, 2021 March 31, 200
GST Input 9.3 511.83
Prepad Expenses 023 %32
Capital Selvances 1a77
Mlvances o staff ) - 0,45
Tonal 18.83 63841 |
16 Tiguity Sharc Capital {(IMNR in lakhs)

Particulars A at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Sharc Capital
Authorized
L2000 000 equity shaves of Ra 10/ cach 1,20,0010,410 1,40 D000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid

26,94,49 405 equily shares of Rs, 10/ each | 06,044 04 06,244,494
Total ] 95,044.94 06,944.94 |
Reconciliation ol share Capital: (IR in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021
Mo of Shares Amount
Opening Equity Shares D448 A0D WG, 194,94
Akl Mo ol Shaces, Shaae Capita] dssoed £ subscaibed doning the yeaa z
Closing balanec G6,94,20 405 OF 20
B (IR in lakhs)
Partculars As at March 31, 2020
Mo of Shares Amount
Opendog Eaguity Shares Q6.94,1%.103 9604404
Add: Mo, nf Shares, Share Capinal fsaced, suthseribed during the year
Closing halance 06,55 49,103 6,044,594
LDreails of shareholders holding more (In Mumbers)
MName of the Shateholder Az at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Jurports Authonty of India (AAL- 31%% 1944.19,195 4944,19,193
Grearer Mohali Area Development Authonty (GMADA- 24.5% 2375,15,105 237515102
IMaryana Shahan Vikas Pradhikaran (HEVF* 3450 | YR A5105 2375,15,10z
16.1 * Erspwhile [larvana Urban Development Aurhosiey (HUTIA)
17 (ther Equity (IR in lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asoul

‘March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020

Rewined Earnings

Cipereng Balance 385578 37045
Surplus ¢ (Deficid) in Sratcment of Profit and Loss : 147653 331035
Total 5,372.31 3,895.78

g
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited

MNodes lurming part of the financial statements

Borrowings {INR in lakhs)
Particulars As at Ag at |
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
(thers Loans '
Tutal - -
Other Non-Cutrent Financial Liabilities (INR in lakhs)
Particulars As at Ag at |
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Seeurty Deposits 20444 1LB35.08
Lease Liabilitr A6 53,95
Total £05.56 1,892.03

BMUA hes notthed INTY AR 116 and the seme is effectve from Aped 1, 20090.CHTAL has applied the same &
recagnize the rght to use asset and corresponding Lalelity. Kindly refer aote 2o 34 for the detiled disclosuzes,

Other Mon-Cutrent Liabilities

(INR in lakhs)

Parriculars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Dieferred Fair Veloation Gam - Secunry Deposirs 13614 9768
Total 156.16 49768
Other Current Financial Liabilitics {INR in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Security Deposits 2.118.05 6653.30 |
Adrports Authosn ol lndia 00,82 T08.24
AAl Carge Logistes & Alled Services Company Tad 5047 36,59
Lialelity of Pay & Allmwances 671 1055
BExaenses Dayables BE.05 BO3.07
Withheld#= 3170 361.63
Lease liabiliny 1787 16,37
[thers 045
Total 3,440.40 2,000.95

MCA has notfied IND AS 116 and the same s cffective from April 1, 2010.CHTAL has applied the same &
recognise the right to vee asset and correspending linbiling, Kindly refer nore no 34 for the detailed disdlosures.

* Liabilty 0f Re, 36,5 lakhs (for IY 2019 20) wwends AAL Cargn Logisties & Allied Services Company Lid has
been regrouped from Fapense pavable o AAT Carpo Logistics 8 Allicd Services Cerrany 1ud,

B Amounts withheld includes amounts dedecied and wall be pavable after fuldlment of the contractual chligation
to capital creditors 25 well as other suppliers in the normal covrse of business.



Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

22 (ther Current Liabilitics (INR in lakhs)
Particulars As oar A at
March 31, 2021 Muarch 31, 2020

LTuties & 1axes 9261 136.30
Deferred Far Valaation Gair: - Seevsry Dennsits PO 15,56
efersed Revenue- Govermment Ciranr 2100 281K
\Government Geant- [nterest Refundalle® 3262 17.59
Crher liabdlines .08 110
Total 493,20 451.54

221  Dhuties & Taxes of the Corrent Year includes smtatory labilides of Rs. 1368 (1Y 2982 Iakhs on account of
TS, Rs, 7RS4 (PY 104.33) lakhs on zecount of GET, Re 030 (PY 2.42) lakhe oo account of Lubuow Ciss

payable & Rs. 009 lakhs on account of TCS oo car parking.

222 Oither Liablity i current Francial veas is mainly on aceonnr ef liabiley for Lost & bound.

223+ Governernent Crrant- Inlerest refuodable of Re 17,38 (for 1Y 201940 have heen regroaped from Deferred
Reverne-Cnverenment Crrant w Specific bead Goverenment Grant loterest Refundable.

23 Curtent Provisions

(INR in lakhs)

Parriculars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 3, 2020
Cither provisiong® 107.55 10755
Total 107.55 107.55

= A DPower Perchase agreement dated 12072006 was exeoured berween CHIAL and Renew Sclar Power Privare
Lirited for installation of Soler Power Plant of 3 MWp which will be exveated in o phases. In Phase 1, olant
wath capacity of 3 MWp will 3e installed snd balance 2 MW will be installed en the sequirement busts i future,
Lrie o pending approval of NET METERING wil Ponjab Sate Power Corporation Limited [PEFULY,
agency conveyed that they are not able w generare salar poswer an full capadty, Tleclon M/ Renew Solar
Power Private Limited has claimed Cor the full amener 25 per plant eapaonty and convey i they sre deprived of
utlisatiom of plane ar it full cepacite tesaliog i loss of generstion because of restrictions and thersfore
prdemilized capacity may e consdered as deamed peser genemton . The amount claimed by M5 Reoew
solar power limited towards deemed power generaton amounting o Rs 321 creses whereas CTIAL hae
scknowledged and paid for in cespect of energy acwally being consumed. Ia s wegard Dispate Rescluton
committee was formed an request of aency Le M/s Renew Solar Power Provate Limited and afrer demailed
delizeraion [2RE has gives = decision on the methodology for seceprance of claim which is 50% ol the amount
worked out and certified by Bngneer-in-charge o respect of claim of deemed loss generation, subject
approval of comperent authority, The daim subritted by M5 Renew Power has been serutivized by the
Engineer in Charge and ameont payable worked out to Ra 107 crores which will be submitzed 1o the eomperent
authomty after accepiance of claim by agency. In s regard ageney has expressed  disagrecment un (T
acceplance of Ks 107 crores as full clam and submitted that amenat of Ba 107 erores as intenio payment and
recommended that the same perind of aenzal selar generadon with oel uwing ey be taken as base and
therealtes fnal figire may he released. The proposition of the ggency 15 accepred by CHIAL sabjeet to maximum
etk decided by DRC. The agency has also agreed for oot to levy any inteecsr on claim ameunt e, 309 of the
applicable mierest included in their original claim of Re. 321 crores, The balance amounr of maxmum cethng is
shown we comtvpert labiliy e Rs. D230 crores under note oo 3682 The same s line with 1N A3V
Provisions, Conringenr Liabilites and Contingent Assets as well s 1IN AS 10 Feents afier Reporting Teriod.

Ly
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

24 Revenue From Operations {IMNR in lakhs)
Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2021 Marech 31, 2020
Sale of services
I. Aeronautical Revenuce
Parking & Housing A6.86 B2
User Development Fees 3787.99 1, 6071
LExtension of Walch hoers 3.24 naz
Cirnind Handling Services 5333 11042
Throughput Charpes*® - 84,87
Bagrrage Reconoimnon System Charges 11.76 J162
Commeon User Terminal Bguipment Chagges 113,94 6,85
Cango Revene 46.18 5531
Total 4,053.31 7.108.96
11, Aviation Security Fee¥* : 362,96
IT1, Non-acronautical Revenue
Adimission Fees/Comrnercial Passes 9.14 4,86
Car Parking 16202 274.73
Bert & Services 1,200.03 Boda2
LTading Concession 108240 1,923.33
In-Flight Catering Servies 1384 743
Cither Mise, Revenuez s 188,09 407.61
Total 2,662.43 3,482.60
Tonal(I+I11+11IT) | 6,715.75 10,954.52 |

241 *Consequent o MellA and AHRA Order Throughpo Charges has been discontnued from 15.01.2070 ie.
Presairmis Yoear.
24.2 #* After formation of NASET trust by MoCA on 01.07.2019, all the revenue & Fspendire of CT5F has been
absorbed by reast. Resulting in discontmuation of Aviaton Secunty Fee (ASD) revenue & C1SF Faxpenduiture in
e books of CHIAT,

24.3 =% Income from Fili shouing | hoarding and display worth Rs. 7.96 and 399.65 lakhs (Both for FY A19-208)
have been regrouped from Urading Concession w Crher Mise. Revenues,




Chandigarh International Adrport Limited
MNotes forming part of the financial statcments

25 (nher Income (I™M R in lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Resioulats March3L,2021 | March 31, 2020
Ieterest an Term Dopusils ineRell] 20400
lererest frenn Income Tax Depantment Q0,54 102,88
Trofit oa 5ale of Fixed Assol 1.H4 -
bair Walusuen Cain 1776 138,15
Reversal of exvess provision® - 2957
Miscollaneouws Tncome** 3G ) 17.32
Total 1,149,872 1,099.00)
251 7 On reguest of CISE, Company have made che dability srmovnidng Rs. 30 lakhs far Arms & Ammunition and
Rs 21 Lakh [or clothing and equipment's in Y 201819 hascd o the best estimate availatle at that dme
Hegewer, in the previews year acnal payment daimed oo account of above 13 smounting o Ra. $.27 lakhs for
Arms & Ammuniton and for R 1515 lakhs tor clothicg & equipment resulting 1o reversal of excess lability
srnouning o Be. 29057 lokhs in Y 200020,
253 = Intesest on income tax efund of Ka, 1988 lakhs from Y 200920 has heen regrouped from Miscellaneons
ineome to specific bead- interes: from Income Tax Department,
26 Employee Benefit Dxpenses [IMR in lakhs)
; Faor the vear ended For the vear ended
Hgmicilae March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Pay & Mlowances {250 16113
Contsbution o Providenr Fand and cther furds” 1314 30,23
Cost of 3tafl Deployment of AAT 466,74 AWE3E2
Total 55238 539.70
261 % Lspeoses aermaining to leave saluy, puosion contsbution sod sl conmbotion 1o berevelert fund
sumuu.uu'ng e Rs.23.29 Lakhs [fur 7Y 2019 'I{P_':l have been [Eﬂl'\'_‘_.l_‘Pf‘;d fronn ]_'-‘ﬂ_nl.- S allovavznees 1o commibulaee
'rovident fund and othes funds
17 Finance Cost {IMNIR in lakhs)
e For the year ended | For the vear ended
i March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Intezest due o fale valuarion
-Securty Deposit 11776 153812
[ense 570 .00 |
T'otal 12346 145.05
28 Depreciation and Amottization Expenses {INR in lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
ula
Riacuila March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Depreciation on Targible asses 305087 336342
Amerrizanion o0 ntangible asscrs 328 1.3%
Llepreciaion on Right 1o use assers Xy X
T'ostal 3,062,854 3,371,449
281 MOCA bas nodfied TNTY A% 116 and e sume is elfoctive from April 1, 2000 CHTAL has zoplicd the same &

recognize the sight o use asser amd corresponding fabiline, Kindly refer note no 34 for the detaled disclosures,

h
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Chandigarh Intetnational Airport Limited
Motes forming part of the finandal statements

29 Other Expenses (INR in lakhs)
ccul For the year ended For the year ended
B March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Operating Expenses
Repair & Maintensnce

- Cival 37463 33627
Flecrrical 197.5%6 230,78
- Seourty Bouesment & Furnilure 6365 108,04
- Blectronics & I'T Infrastructure 1.HG BN
Housekeeping & Cleaning Works 37303 3E1.24
Ardvertisement & Publeiry 0.8 1827
Consumption of Stores & Spares LR 234
Electeiy & Water Charges 395,25 a14.91
LE-PONS changes 1.52 a6t
Facil:raticn Expenscs 39.31 19597
Hire Charges - Others 139.33 11102
Collecton Charges an PEFSTTIF LT 22.54
Subscription (Profeesional bodies) 19.402 in.s2
Screcning Expenses® 103,51 3291
Medical Room DUxpenses 17.70 -

Securily Expenses

Pay & Allowances and Other Seall Cost 69,54 Ti0.15
Wehicle Runaing & [lire Charges - 12.24
Crther Miscellaneoas Expenses 13.07

Other Adininistrutive Expensces

Postage, Telepram, Telex 0.0 R
Printing & Starinnery 125 11.81
Telephone Charges A 229
Travelling Expenses 5B 216
Consultancy Chavges 41.79 6042
Insuranece Expensc 2RO 233
Bac debus - 21,89
Payment ro Anditess
- Audit Fee - Snetony Audit 1.0 100
Auadit Bee - Other Audir 200 315
Training & Serinur Expenses 15 Q.61
Boend Meeting Expenses - 1.32
Oiher Fees 10 nes
Miscellaneous Office Exnenses™™ 248 338
Rent, Rates & Taxes .00 7.01
Corporate Social Responsibiliy | 65,67 16.38
Total ' 1924.46 3380.26




Chandigarh Intemational Airport Limited
Motes forming part of the financial statements

201 CHTAT. inits 44 h Tseard Meeang has approved o brpar the amount recersble From Custom & lrrmigraton
department. This amonnt is long ovtstanding and are under disagreement with the sad department. Currently,
this matter has been raken up by custom & immigraten depastment with MHA through MoCA for issuing
suitable directons. Compeny have cecopgnise the amount of Rs. 2085 lakhs as the impeirment on trade receivable
during the vear. Flowewver, company may coentinoe te eaise the clam on the same dll the decision being
communizated on marter by oA,

29.2  ~ Sereenung Vspenses of Rs, 3291 lakhs (for BY 2009200 have heen regrouped from Repair & maintenance to a

specific head - Serevming exoenses.
29.3  ~ Expenscs pestaining to Honomsum amounting o R00.34 Lakhs (for 1Y 2019-20; have been regrouped from
Pay & allowances o Miscellaneous office expenses,
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Chandigaeh International Airport Limited

Notes forming part ol the financial statement

30.1 Financial Instruments by Catcgorics

Diselnsures in regpect of Ind AS 107 - Financial Instrumenis

"The carrping value and fair v2lue of financial instraments by categories were as follows:

" ANNUAL REPORT 202021

. (IMR in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021
Asnurtized cost Fair Vahue Total carrying| Total fair value
Through Other | Through Profit value
Comprehensive or Loss
Income
Financial Assets:
Cash & Cash Pguivalents BH3. 2D 2 A83.29 BR3.29
Banl balances other Cash d Cash 18,736,232 -
Hguivalents 18,736.22 18,736.22
Trade Recevahls - 556,80 s . = STl B KD
Loans 3294 370 3704
Uther Francial Assels 1.B26.88 - 1,826,558 182688
T'otal Financial Asscts 22,136.12 | z B 22,136.12 22,136.12
Financial Liabilities: )
Lease labality 2395 33.95 5395
Secuanily Deposits {except deferrad 2nR7.33 - Nt Ak 26853
fair valuation porton)
(Other Fioancial Liabilites : 1}@4.48 1,300,148 1,304.18
Total Financial Liabilities 404596 | : ’ 4,045.96 4,045.96
(INR in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2020
Amaortized cost Fair Value Total careying| Total fair value
Thraugh (Jther | Throngh Profi value
Comprehensive or Lose
Ineome
Financial Assets:
Cash & Cash Eyavalents B0 80,40 B0
Bank halances other Cash & Cash 106,920,406 - o
Fouivalents 16920066 16,920.46
Trade Beceivable 1,314.40 1,314,490 1,319.40
lizane 320 A2.04 3294
Orher Financis] MAasetr 1,140,140 11014 I,14LH1
‘Total Financial Assets 19,488,534 = s 19,488.54 | 19,488.54
Financial Liabilities:
Lesase liahility 11,52 TOA2 A2
Secnriry Deposirs feveept delerred 2.501.38 -
Fair waluaon portion) 2,501.58 250138
Cther Financia] Liabiliries 132127 5 - 1,521.27 1,321.27
Total Financial Liabilities 3,502.97 = | g 3,892.97 3,892,97 |




Chandigarh International Adrport Limited
MNotes forming part of the financial statement

30.2 Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value hicrarehy is based on inputs 1o valuatior techaiques that are vsed o measure fair valuz that ave cither obscrvable o1
unahicreable and comsiss of the following three levels:

* Level ] Level | hierarchy inclades financial instruments messured ssing quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets.

& Level 2 Level 2 hiesanchy includes financial icstrumenss measered csing inpurs arther than quoted prices incloded within Level 1
thal are ohservable for the asset or Hability, either directy (i a2 prices) or ndicetly {le. detived o prices),

®  level § - Lewel 3 hierarchy inclides foancial instrements measared wsing inpuats that are not based on abservaile market data
funehservable inpors).

The following table preseat fair value hicrarchy of asses s habilies measured an fair valoe - {TNR in lakhs)
Particulars Lewvel 1 Level2 Level 3 Total Valuation | Eey inputs and
Technique Significant
unabservable
inputs
|

As at March 31,

2021

Vil Linbilities at amortised cose .

Secnry Depostts - 2687.53 u 258753 |Brusing the | Valsed ar MCLA
discoumnted vate ol 518 s on
cash Huw 017042020
method B3

As at March 31,

2020 .

Finaneial Liahilities ar amortised cost: o

Security Deposits [ 230035 - 250158 [By wang the | Walued ar ACTR
disconinted rare nif 5B a5 an
cash dow 0170472019
methend B.73%h

Fair value of financial asscts and financial liabilitics measured at amaortized cost -

{(INR in lakhs)
As ar March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
. 2 Carryin
Particulars 5 rying
Catying :ﬁ.mnunr Fair value Amount Fair value
hefore fair value :
hefore fair
Financial Liahilitica:
Security Deposit : 205557 268783 | 01462 250135

Ve sarrying awowent of fnaseiad instrmrents olber than security deporils sl ar irade rocsivatides, carh wned v eguerveidnl, wiber finanial acvetr, trade
papaliler and sther francial Sabifitier are concidered o be 10 nowe ar their fitr vafiyes, due fo their shori-iervm nainre, alence of awy transaction coct
[

e QS
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303 Financial risk managrement
Financial risk faciors
The Company's actenles cxprse it tooa varery of Brancial risks: market visk, ceeds nisk znd Tpuedity misk. The Company's primary
focus 15 o feresee the anpredictability of Grancial markets and seck w0 mininda: prestenial wilverse efects onoits financial
'.ll.:rrtlﬂrlﬂ'llx'.

Risk Exposurc arising From ] Measwement | Management =

“arkes nisk- Tnterest mate Ma soch sgnificant risk

Credit st Cash sral eash equivalents, wade Agenng analysiz Divessification of bank deposits
receivaales ir. public scctor banks and wade

debtor are secuped by secunny
deposit or bank guaranoee ete

-
Licoediry risk Bozzowngs and other babolizics Fearlling casbe Mo Mamiainrg acdisprate cash and
frcecasts cash cowvalent
Matker Risk Foreign exchanpe Fiaaneial labilitics not decominated St.ll;iﬂl'il"l.' Mataining adeipate cash and
indizn rupees Analvas cash cyuwivalent. However, o

such sigrficant vk

a) Market Risk
The cotmpany s nal heve any qigniﬂ:am marke: s

b} Credit Hisk

Crediz niak retees o the visk of default on its oblganen by the courterpamy resulting in a finsncisal loss. The macimum exposure
tea the croedit dsk 2t the separting dae 3 primarily from made secemvables and unbilled revenue, Accordmaly, credit sk rom ieade
receivables has been sepatatcly cvaluated from all other Enancizl assets i the Jall woing arugraphs

(i} Trade Recervables & Unbilled Revere

The company has cutstanding teade recervaliles amounnag o Ks 63050 hkks and Ts 131440 lakhs and unhidled rovimme
amounting m R 393 9% lakhs wal 2008 lavhs as of bMerch 31, 2021 and Masch 31, 20720 respectively, ‘Lrade recoivables and
unbilled revenue are seoured colicr by Tenk goasantee or by scouity depostt e eash or both and aze dedved Tom revenue from
CUSTOTCT.

O accaunt ol adopion of Ind-AS 102, the comomny nses expected credit loss model to assecs the impairmen: loss or pain. Lhe
Company bas used a practical exocdient by comouting the expected credis loss sllowane o irde meeesvables based oz a
provision matein. The providon marms ke 20 sccount bisioriea] ennlis loss expenenced and adjusted for forwand Ioking
information, The sxpeeted credit loss allowance 15 based oo agemng al the days the receivakles are due

Credit risk exposuge
An anzlysis of age of cade teceivalifes ol mach repoeting dace 15 summaczed as Sllows:

(IR in lnkhs)

Particulats Mareh 31, 2021 Maech 31, 2020 |
Gross Amount | Tmpairment Gross Impaitment |
Amount
Less than l|:|.i'r|!}' tiuys 2408 T 09 [ = I
Past due mote than ane mooth but 0ot e2oee than three 1200
EI'lU.I:I.ﬂJ.!- 285
Past due more than theee months but not more than s 46,53 -
mmanths 21T
Past cue e than siv months but 0ot mome than wne| 405
Jek 45,12
Mare than coe year LG5 - -'.'1,43 21.8%
T oral ' 656,30 — 1,314,400 | 218D
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Motes forming part of the financial slalement

Lompany during the year ended 2020 has recogaised the impamment on irade receivables. Rindly reler note no. 29.1. No ather

impainnent bas been recogaised as company have good experience with ther debtors in the past.

(i} Financial assets other than trade receivables and unbilled revenue

Creds: risk relating o cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible heeanse our eounterpartics are banks. We consider the
eredit quality of wrm deposits with such baks that are majenty owned by the Government of Tndia and subijest to the regalatory
oversighl of the Reserve Bank of India w be good, and we review these backing relationships on an oopoing basis, There are an
impatmment provisions as at cach reporting dare against these (nancml assets. We consider all the other financial assets as o the
reportng éates 10 be of pood credit guality. The company does aot hold any collateral ar ather enhancements o cover its credit
nisks associated with its other financial assels.

) Liguidity Risk
Dur Lguidiy needs are montored e the basis of monthly and vearly projections. The company's prineipal sources of liguiding
wre cash and cash equivalents, cash penerated from aperations & contabubon in the form of share capezal,

W manage our liquidity needs by contioneusly monionng cash inflows and by matnteining adequate eash and cash equivalents.
Net eash requirsments are compated to available cash in nrder (o determine any sharfalls.

Short term bguidity requirements ennsists mainly of sundey creditons, expense payable, employee dues and retention & deposits
arising durirg the normal course of business as of cach reporting dare, We mainmin a suffivient balznee in cash and cash
equivalents (o meet our short term liguidity requirements,

W assess long teom liquidity sequavinents on g periodica) basis and manage them tarough intemal azeroals In the Anancial vear
2UZD-21, company has not taken any loans from any of the sources. Gur non-carrent liabilites melude security depnsics only.

The wable below provides details reparding the discounted contracta’ mameities of nen-dedvatve fnancial lahilities, The alle
inclides both principal & interest cash Jows.

(INR in lakhs)
Pardculars Less than6 | 6 months to 1 1-3 years 3-8 ycars More than 5 Total
maonths year yedrs
March 31, 2021 -
Lease liability” A0 854 JE0E - h3.95
Securiry deposits 48572 126973 e 240,89 30,77 26R7.35
Cither Financial
Liahilitics 1,304.48 ; . 1,304.48
Total 2,161.74 1,27T8.66 | _313.'?9 240,99 a0.77 4,045,965
| S
March 31, 2020 -
Lease liabiliny” 5139 812 | 770 16,25 - TO32
Security deposits 504.55 158.74 | 137436 175.38 EE 13 2,301.37
Oither Financial
Liabalities 1,331.27 - - , 1.321.27
Total 1,834,02 i 166,93 1,412.27 191.63 2813 3,892.97 |

“Refer disclosures under Ind A% 116




Chandigarh International Airport Limiced
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The mable helow provides demils regarding the tndiseairied con-acma’ mameities of non dedvaive fingaeial labilioes. The able
inclodes both petacipal & interest cask: Hows.

(INR in lakhs)

Particulars Less than & 6 momnthy ol 1-3 years | 35 vears More than 5 Total
months vear § wears

Mlarch 31, 2021
Lezse Dability™ 11.12 11.12 003 6228
Secudny depasits 531 24 135569 31048 321.77 H4.58 2935.57
{nher Frrianeal
Tanl:ilizes 1,504 4% - ) - ,3_|:144H |
Total 2,166.84 1,369.81 339.51 .77 §1.39 1,302.33
March 31, 2020 £
T.case Labadity” 11605 11008 .95 o 1728 G233
Sccurity depostss 51062 | 16821 L6117 233.63 47043 3011462
her  Tinancial
Daahilines 1,321.27 3 - ; =N 1321.%7
T'nial 1,842,093 179,28 1,656.50 | 27091 470.43 442024

“Tefer diusclasorcs ander Ind A5 116

d) Market Risk- Forcign exchange

Cm‘u.]:lan:,r has u;cpvsul,l tor [oreipn cuziency :_"xd.mn_‘;:g: risk ansing Jdue o |'|,|||,;-_!.__-_: CLLTEIcy transacticon, p'.icl'l'lilﬁ|_'.: with Tespect to he
wathicld amaunt fmade pavables). Forsgm ceensoge sk arises From fuwre comenercial ransactions and recognnsed Liab lites
denomimated in a currency that is aot the company’s fanetional curency, The company's esprswe w foreign cumency risk a0 the
end of the reporting peried expressed in IR

Az at $st March 2021
LSI in lekhs  [INH in lakhs

Trade pavables- Withheld

1ISD- US am | 1633

Sensidvicy

The sensitivity zaalysis includes oaly ovtstanding foreign curenes denominared monetary items and scjust thee anslation for
the periad end for pereentage change = foceisn custency rates. b positive number below mdicates an nerease i profin wocse the
TR strenthen for cortn perceniage against the relevant curreacy, Fora covtzin porcentags weekemap of the INT againa
selevant curreney, there woult be o comperable anpact on the profits, and the balanees below wonld be negative.

{IMR in lakhs])
As At As At
P‘-_ I:I:I:]:IEI.'E. = o E:!.ﬁt March 2021 | 31st March 2020

x, e

4 Tenpact on |imﬁl
USD-US sensitivity P I

I /USD - lacrease by 3% o B17 |
INE/LUSY - Drecrease by 3% | 217
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31 Capital Management
The Company's abjective in macaging its capital s o safeguand irs abiliy 1o continue 25 a going concern and 1o optimise rerorns
ro our shureholders. The Company considers the following comprments of its Balanes Sheet to be manigred capiral:
1} Share Capital, 2) Other Reserves comprising of Retained Ramings
The Company’s capital stracrure is based on the Managements assessment of the balances of key elements w ensure slraleyic
decisions and day to day activities. The caputal strocmire of the Company is managed with a view of the overall imacro cconomic
condidons and the sk charzeteristies of the wndeclyng assets,
I'he Company’s policy 5 to maintain @ streng capital siuetore with 2 focus 1o mitigate all extstng and nowndal 1isks o the
Company, maintan sharcholder, vendor and market confidence and sustain conrinueus growth and development of the
Company.
The Company’s focus is on keeping a strong fatal eguty base to ensure independeaee, securiry, a5 well as high fnancial fesibilicg
without impacting the risk arofile of the Company. In ordes, to maintain or adjust the capital stactare, the Company will ke
appropriae steps as may be necessary. The Company docs not have any debt or financial covenzuls,

32 Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting standard (Tnd AS)-108: "Operating Scgments"
Besed on the “management approach” as defined m lud A5 108, the Chief Orperating, Decision Maker (O} cvaluares the
Compeay’s performance and allocates resourees hased on an analysis of varions perfommmue ndicators by business segments.
The Company s ic the business of opembons of the Jarport at Chandigarh Intemmational Adrport Lirvited at Mohali
Consequently, the Company does not have separate boasiness segment,

(i) Information about majer customers
Tf revenues from transactions with a single exrernal customer amount 2 10 per cenl oo mare of an cntiy’s revenues, the entity
shal disclose that Fact, the tomal amount of revenues from each such costomer, and e idensny of the segmenl or segments
reporting the revenues. The same can he provided i the Frallraring format.

{INR in lakhs)

Year caded

o of customets 2 2
Total Bevenme from above osoomess 3.831.74 3,190.04
‘I'otal Revenus 6,713.75 10,954,532

Ty of Lotal Revenve 3% 47%|

{if) Geographical Information
Revenue from external customers by location of operations and informanon abour iss non cutrent assets by lozation of assels aie
s follow -

84,650.57 H1033,22
84,650.57 84,033.22 6,715.75 10,954,352 |

{iiiy  Revenuc from Majur products and servives
Please refer note no, 24 for details of major product and scivices.
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33 Disclosure in espect of [ndian Accounting Standard 24 "Related Partics Disclosures”
331 1dselosures for Other than Govt, Related Entities

i During the foancial yess, the Company had eatered inso redated pame transactions which were on azm's length Dases and in
the crdinamy course ol business.

b. List of Related Parcy

| Mame of related party | Lype of Relatonship FY: 2020-21 FY: 2019-20
B Noay Kumar Chiel Exeoutive Cfficer ¥ ¥
|
Hh, Suneel Durt Chiel Fxrerutive G fficer | ¥
8. Rakesh Densbla Chief Ficancial Officer ¥ [ v
S Swmest Faor Campuany Secretary v ¥
Mdrports Aunthority of  Iadia|$iakeholder d L4
(AAT)
Chicarcs Muabali Ares |Sizkehalder v v
Dievelopment Authoriy
{SRSEYREN
Haryana Shahan Vikas Srzlehalder W v
Prachikeran (HEVE -
AAT Canpo Laypstics & Alded | Pellow Suabaidiary v "
Survees Compacy Lid
TAAICLAS)
. Compensation of key managerial personnel (IMR i Takhs)
Particulars For the vear cnded | For the vear ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Short-term Henefies 230 10815
Post-ecmplovment hencfis 1311 30.23
Tatal LER T 131.38
d. Tramsaclions with Related Parries dueing the vear (IME i lakhs)
e e e e S S b, L e e L e e ]
db ok
AL - - 460,74 19,32
CiMALIA - - - 1.12
AMULAS - - - 10331 |

{IMR in Jakhs)

AAl -~
GAlATIA 2 ] ' 2173
AAICLAS g : 3281
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(INR in lakhs)

T AL W
Balance Paya B6.E7 108,26
Dalarice Recoverable from AAI* 186,30 ) 18650
Balar.ce Payable to AAICLAS 59.47 36.59

*Out of Rs. 186,50 lakks recoverahle from AAL an amount of Rs. 175.08 Lakhs is owards service max paid by AMAD during the
vear 2013 16 1o serviee rax deparinent wlhich has been laler on recoverble from service tax department by AAT consequent o
the exemptica norification ro. 092015 dated 01032016 on original work with retrospective effecr. Tn this tepand, Principal
Lirector of Audit {CAG) has issned a letser dated 10.02.2021 requested m present the case before CHIAL board and convey
that company may made provision 17508 lakhs in the bocks of CHIAL & also conoveyed o review the disclosure in espect of
INTY AS 24 fie. related party disclosure), Accordingly, the matter hes hoen deliberated before the CHIAL Board in irs 49tk
meeting regareing ahove and it has been decided by the board that the smouar of Rs, 173,08 lakhs to be disclosed on the same
lines of previous vear Balance Sheet under the head Orher Current Financial Assets Le. recoverable ftuia parties. Since the AAl
is rrajes stakeholder of CHIAL therefore the seme has heen disclosed in compliance o Ui Tnd A3 24.

Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting standand (Ind AS) 116 and 17 "Leases™

As Lessee

() Description of lease arrangements - Arrangement 1o supply X-Ray Bappape Mackine wo the compaay and payrnent will
be made in a tenure of 6 years. The subject lease is a canccliable lease ard it 1cluce terms such as transfer of ownership
lessec at the end of lease term & also covening major ceonomie life of the machine, Accordingly, company bas classified this
leaze as finance lease in FY 2018-19 as per the provisions of Tnd AS 17. MCA has notified Ind AS 116 and the same is effective
from April 1, 2019, CHIAT has applied the same & rceognise the right to usc asset snd corresponding liabiliny.,

Righr of use asscts (Net) of Rs. 9730 Lakbs and lease lighilides of s, 8317 Lakhs have been recoprised as on 1 Apnl, 2009,
Thete is only one class plant and machinery for right o wse assets.,

(b) Maturity Analysis of lease liability

Maturity analysis has already been disclosed under the liquidity risk section in note 30.3

As lessor
a) Operating Lease
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

(INR in lakhs)
-.-ﬁ--r P s T e R ey B TR o - 1 £ ' E a5
Mot later than 1 year 443
Larer than 1 year and no: later than 3 vears i Ni il
Laler than 3 years il NNl
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35 Disclasure in reapect of [ndian Accounting Standard (Ind A%)-33 "Barnings Per Sharc(EPS)"
a) Basic TIPS

The carmgs and weiglted svotape ouneber of ondinary shares wsed i the calzulation of basic RS is as follows:

(INR in lakhs)

Particulirs ' R - For the year ended | For the year ended
e R ST March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
i L e ‘I L et : .- i e i ety .,J' ; ..'_-_I-.
Prafin (o) for the vear, atebutable to the owners of the company 1,477 3,419
Earnings wsed in calculation of basic earnings per share(A) 1,477 3,319 |
Weighred average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earnings G054 2,094
per share(13) x |
Basic EPS(A/T) 015 034
by Diluted EPS

The carnings and weighted aversge number of ordinare shares used moe calenlazion of Dilured TP2 is as follows;
(TNR in lakhs)

i e | March3,2021 | March3,2020
I'rofir (loss) for the year, attnbatsble o the cwners of the company 1477 3,419 |
Harnings used in ealoulation of basic earnings per share[A] B 1477 3,319
Weighted sverape number of ordinary shares dor the purpese of hasic carnings 9,004 2,004
pur shareit)
Diluted EPS(A/B) ] ' n.is | 0.34
36 Value of Components, spare pares & stores: {TMR in lakhs)
: ;  Particulars Fur the vear ended | For the year ended
J e | March 31, 2021 ‘March 31, 2020
(1 lmported L
(i1 Indigenaous: - ) T.23 A0
37 Statutory Auditor (IMR in lakhg)
PR o FgT Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Pl ] March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Aodit Fees- Statatory Auadit ) 1.00) 1.4K]
Total ' L00 100

32 Contingest Liabikries:

381 M/s CULOO was awarded the exccoutive lounge on internatonal side afier operarionalisation of the Airpon. Therealzer, on
request of DITCO, 1o make their project commercially viable, CHIAL considered the request and avard rhe conmrars for
executive leunge of Domestic as well considering that the footfall on the internatonal side was nor adequate. Later on
23AIE, CITCOY served 50 dave’” nodes for rermination of contzact of lounge oo leiational side oaly and wane to continue
lounge for Domesde Side only which was ot ageeed by CHIAL as the contract for Domestde side was awarded only m
comprnsate L Josses of Ineomatonal side and requested to contoue both the exceudve lounges, However, CTTCO vacated
Inernational Lounge on 23,05.2018, Thereafier, CIILAL was lelt witn no ather option bur to terminase the lieose of
Trormestoe Lowsge also, Thas, CELTRY fled o Civil sait at Mohali distdet court and the sz s pending for the considerstion
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38.2 ALs Renew solar power Pmired has clwmed an amount of Ra Ka 3.21 crones wwads deeined Joss of power generation 1n this
regard Dispute Resoludon committee has recammerded the methadnlogy for scceptance of clelm which is 30% of the amouat
worked out & certified by Engiaeer-in-charge subject o approval of competent anthoriy, Eagineer in Charge Las worked oat
claim amountng 1o Rs 107 crores for arceprance by ageney. Inchis repend agency bas cxpressed disagreement oa the
acceptance of Rs. 1.07 crores as full dlaim and submited diar amount of Rs, 107 croves as mfenm payment aod recommended
that the actual generation of the same perind may be tzken tor the computation of fAral figure may he released, CHIAL has
agreed on the methodology recommended by the ageney hur ar the same wme conveyed Ul interest may not be charged by
the ageney due to pandemic situation and the same bs agreed by the ageaes. Therefore, CHIAL bas made a provision of Rs.
1,07 crores in Y 2020-21 after the certification by Eogineer in-Charge. Now after the derail delhesation sgency has apreed o
waive off the intersst | accordingly the maximum cefing peyable by the CHTAT after adjusting the mrerest is Re, 137 cromes.
Ot of the Ra 1,37 crores an smount of Re 030 cromes is shown ss contngent Babilite as the semal payment s subject o the
condition that actual solar genesation of the same periodicy with deemed loss generaton peded may be taken as base fox
caleulation of loss to % /s Renew solar power Gmited. The same may be payable in 2077 subject to paramezers delined above,

30 Capital Commiiments
@ Capital Conmnitnests: Datimated amount of contracts rematning 10 be executed on capital account is Rs 1387 95 lakhs as
on Mapch 31, 2031,
) Capital Commitments: Dstimated amount of contracts remaining w e excouted on capital acconnt s 23032 lakhs a5 on
March 31, 2020,

40 Government Grant

Diring Faancial year 2018-19, Minisory of Commerce under "Trade [nfrastracture for Pxpors Scheme (TTHE)” has approved
sovernment prant for project namely “Seiung up of Centre for Pershable Cargo (CPC) al Chandigarh Intemmational Alrport
Limired” amounting to Rs. 562 lakhs, Out of which company had received ir an amount of Rs. 281,00 lakhs during FY 2018-
19, CHIAL has adopted the accounting policy 1 compliance o INLD AS 20 for setting of grant as deferred mcome which is
recopnised as income on a systematic basis over the useful life of asset. The said policy has been adopted from the yeas in
which prant has been reeeived. There 15 no unfulfilled condinen aud vther contingencies attaching to govemment grant/
assistance lias been recognised. Laring the Y 2020-21, the construction ol the sad project is in progress and an amount of
He 2RRO6 Takhs has been incurred and same is been reflecred i the Capital work in progress,

41 Details of Expenditure in foreign currency:-
A ln Current Year 2020-21
1. Supply Installation Testing & Commissioning of 02 nos of In Line Bregpage Screening Systems (US1D 6,21,499.34) Re. 43711
[akhs
2 Supply mstallaton testing commissioning of 03 nos of Passenper Boarding Bedges [PRB jand Advance Visual Docking
System (AVIIGE) | USTH 1,22,199.71) Rs, 92,63 lakhs
3. Arrival & Departure snrvey by Airport Council International (ALY 27,183.81) Rs. 15.69 lakbs

B. In Previous Year 20019-20

1. Explostve Treee Deteciors{ 105 (U513 2B,308.500 Re 2047 lakhs

2 Supply installation Lesting commissioning of 03 nos of Passenger Boarding Budpes (P10 jard Advance Visaal Dockig
System (AVDGS) [ USD 804.115.48) Rs. 590,70 lakhs

3, Arrival & Departure survey by Airport Counctl International (8T 20016.500 Rs. 19,15 lakhs
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42 Disclosure as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AZ) 115 - "Revenue from Contraces with
Customers"

421 Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

a} Description of all the scrvices

(i) Acromautical Revenuoe
Acsonantical Revernae melides severue from all repulated charges levied ar CHITAT fe. Parking Chenpes,
User Development Tee, and Cargo (X Bis Screenicg Charpes) are being recopaied at the rates
presoribed by Alrport Eoonenoe Regelatory Authonty (AERA) & Common user texmmimal cguipment
charges{CUTE? and Baggage reconcibation system RS fee are recopnized as per the conmwact mtes
Estensiom of Waich hours 3 charped as mer applicable raws. User Development Fees 15 recopnized in
respect of each embarking passenger ar a specified mie as approved by AERA

(i) Non- Aeronautical Revenue
Non Aeronmttical Revernue means all revenue streams other than Acronauteal Bevonee The same
consists of (1) revenue frorm eoncessions (i) rents and liad lesses; () food and heverapge coneessions,
fiv) ueilioy chagges, and (v} ather nonavation relaed chagges are secognized based on the remms of
coniractual agreement,

b} Disaggregation of revenue
1 Compary hes identified (heir reveaue as Seronanrical sevenae end None Acronavtca] Bevenue, We
have digclaged the derailed dissgpreraion of the Company’s revenue fzom contracts with customers in
nutes ne. 24 " Revenue from operarians™.
2 Al the eompanies revenoe are from domeste marked,

3 Company mainly have the revenne recogaized over the pesing of dme.

¢} Trade Receivables and Coniract Balances
The fallowing tabic provides the informazion about reecivahles and contmet Tabolities from conteacts
with customers

(INR in lakhs)

Parnculars As At ] As Ar
31zt March 2021 Fist March 2020

Trade Receivable (Wet)- Opening 1,314.:40 H76.63
Sddinions 7 A6310 13,196.50
Delewon U7 12,556.72)]
Closing 556,50 | 1314.40
Contract Asscis- Opening
_ Unhilled Reccivables 301 81 30018
ddizions 365399 701,51
TDeletion 20 A1 390,48
Closing | 395.99 201,81

d) ‘Trade recoivables are ponomierest Leasing snd are genesally are oo Gllowing termes -
Aeronavtes] & Moo Acronsutical Reverue coedi perind w10 davs, Hlowever dusing the pandemie,
buared s taken vanous decsions i board meetings o exiead relief 1w the conuessioness ecloding

decision of extension of crodit period.

) Turing the vear, management bas no; receiver any communication in respeet of ansaisfed revenue
conlract

L,
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Chandigarh International Airport Limited
Motes forming part of the financial statcment

g por seetian 135 and sules made there ander ab Companies Acet, 2003 Company shall spend the mepimom CSRE
experchivre somountng o By, 62,13 lakhs compuied at two per cent of the averape aet profits of the company
made dunag the three immednely oreceding financial years in the vear ended 31 March 2021 which is R
210705 lakhs. Company have spend reguisie amousnr on CSR Acrivines. There 18 no wnspent amount temained
during the year.

Activiaes on which SR expenditure have bren made; (IR in lukhs)
FY 2020-21
Chrganisation Activity undertaken '| Amount

AL Tlealth Infra
Crvl Hespieal Mohah 16,47 |
Crvil E-Iospi.u.t ',';'ixulf.iju:l' 10,91
Cavil Flegpaital Mg e Drstabution of SAmbulance 10491
Civil Fospiid Meh | 10,41
Crval Hospual Ambaka 1647

B T TOTAL 65,67
Activides on which C3R expendinire have been made: (IR in lukhs)

BY 1920
Organisation Activity undertaken |  Amount
A. Construction/ acquisition af any asset
381 Lesir, Cavil Surgenn Office Dristribunon of Computes and other Periphels 1.05
Mlashali
B. On Others purposes
[25F Unit, Civil Surgeon CHfice Drsnnilvation of Bed Sheets, Pillow Ao Pillow Cover - - A0
Mohal
Civil IMospieal, Amhala Canr Distdbadon of 1Tigh Tisk PRI Cowad 14 ks 103
TSP Ui, Civil Surgeon Olfee Thistabunon of N95 Mlask - 6.593
Slobali
o Cares Fonel o | Doaadon w 1M eare franed 1.80
Civil Hospital, Ambala Camie Distibuzon of Nebulizer Mackines f.78
TOTAL B 16,38

The COVI-TY pandemde ts an evolving human ragedy declaed 2 global pandemic by the Woeld Tleslth
COrgumsation with sdverse impace on ceonems and business, In view of global pandemic—C0VIT19, the Cone
of India {Gol} has raken vasians preventive messures including a loczdown all over the coumey ra cuh the harther
outspresd of disease. In pursuance to the nstmuction of Cel, DOGOCA wale dealas oo 47172020018 daced
N0, canveyed for closure of commerdal speeations at all sitports excent cargo, medical and selic? flighrs
Accordingly, apetation af schodeled and non-scheduled commercial aldines were closed at Chasdipaeh Acrporn
wirf 23002070 aned contnued dll 24,05, 2020,

2oAs por DGO arder, Avpos Opeations were wesumed fur Domestie flights wee £ 25052020 witk ecrmain
restriction:. It has resuled m low Assceadt movement and Passenger teaffic is also very lean resching in lower
revemae generation o CHIAL s well s other smkeholders, Keeping i view the pandemic sibation and
sustaimaniliny ot concessionaires at aimart, CHIAL boand has ratonalised the concessiceaire’s Leense feez and
CAM chages and has alse considercd the Gmancial stress and business temoil faced by them and erefare
mtrecuced relief scheme for the concessionaizes by giving ontion for charpeability of leense fees/ concession fees
from fixed Hrense fee/concession fees o passenger bused license fees/concession fecs for the balance sontzact
period/ tll the end of conteact, This kas resulted o financial impact 1o CHIAL o the e of Bs 7.30 cromes
appros for the FY 202021 In view of CHIAL Mapagument Chandipazh International Aiport is a finaneally
slable 2nd crouph to mecr its nhliganons for coatinuiny of business far the foresomble Tutere and the same may be
recavered innear fetoe when pandemic simuation aosmalise.

W




45 CEIAL has awsrded £ contact 1o 375 Three Vee Marketing Per Lid 2s Master coneessiomaine to develog, bald,
fmarce, operate and maintan the geners] outet ar rermical buildiog oo 15.08 2018 fox ¢ perind of 07 years, The
master carcessionaire has foreclosed the comrace wed 20071 2000 exercising the torco-majevre cause of the
mgreement due o global sandemic COVIIAS Three Vee Marketing Tyl Ll bas now revoked o petition under
section 9 of Arbiration ard Concilianon Act with CHILAL for claiming loss of business due 10 COVID-T9 and
other tactars The arhitranon proceeding bas not vet heen stared.

46 Miscelaneous Fxnenses do not include items of expenses exceeding 1% of the total revenue of the compzny or
Hupees 'Len lakhs which ever is higher.

47 Tigores in Financial Stazements have beer runded off to the neanest lakhs (exezpt number of shares) and

previous vears fgnres have been re-grouped, wearanged wheeever neeessazy 1o make them comparable wirh those
ef the eustent vesr's Agures,

48 The beasd of disectors have approved for payment of inteim dvidead @) 1 5% 10 Ra 0015 per share oo
0,944,105 squity sharcs of the Company to be paid out of the profits of the Compary for the year ended
21.03.2021 afer deducton of mx at sousee, o thase rauity shars holders whose names appear a the Regster of
Members of the Company as on 2306 2027,

49  Approval of financial statements
The financial statements weee approved by the Bogrd of Direcrors and authorized lor issee on 25.08.2021

For Balwinder Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountanta

L\ ] /\J f/?
—  {CA Gaurav Thapar) ¥h ur) {Rakesh Dembla)

Partoer Company Secretary CFC
B Mo 093700
FRM 4822N
Mace : Mohal

Thatc - 27.08.2021
DIN: 2o TIoMAATHTILS
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6}(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF CHANDIGARH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021.

The preparation of financial statements of CHANDIGARH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
preseribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (A is the responsibility ol the management of the
company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Compteoller and Auditor General of India under
section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the linancial statements under
section 143 of the Act based on independemt audit in accordance with the standards on auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their
Audit Report dated 27 Auguast 2021,

1. on behall of the Comproller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary
audit of the financial statements of CHANDIGARH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
for the year ended 31 March 2021 under section 143(6)(a} of the Act. This supplementary audit
has been carried out independently without aceess to the working papers of the statutory auditors
and is limited primarily to inguiries ol the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective

exdmimativn vl sonwe of the accounting reconds,

Un the busis of my supplementary audit nothing significant hus come 10 my knowledge which
would give rise o any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors” report under section

[43i61ih) of the Act,

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

er-—l\;y
Place: New Delhi {Rina Akoijam)

Dated: |y October 2021 Director General of Audit (Infrastructure)
New Delhi




Left to Right (Sitting):
Sh. Rajesh Sharma, Sh. Tilak Raj Guglani, Sh. Ashvin Kumar, Sh. Rakesh Dembla
(CFO/Officiating CEO)(In centre), Sh. K.P. Singh, Sh. Hemant Yadav, Sh. Amit Kumar

Left to Right (Standing):
Sh. Amit Ranjan, Sh. Varun Arora, Sh. Vipul Chokker, Sh. Anil Shandil, Sh. Sumit
Gulabani, Smt. Deepika Ghai, Smt. Avneet Kaur, Sh. Rajesh Sharma, Smt. Malvika
Singh, Smt. Manpreet Kaur, Sh. Surender Kumar, Sh. Atul Sharma, Sh. Arun Uday
Rana, S. Mandeep Singh, Sh. Tarun Garg




Bies unie] "ys ‘ybuis despuely 'S ‘euey Aepn uniy "ys ‘ewseys Ny

"YS Jewny| Japuaing "ys Uney 19aiduepy Jws ‘Ybuis exIAle JWS ‘ewseys ysaley 'ys ney| 19suAy Jws ‘leys) eyidesq
JWS ‘luegend JWNS "ys ‘IPUBYS [1UY "YS JoxoyD IndiA "yS ‘eloly uniep “ys ‘ueluey ywy ys :(Buipuels) 3ybry o3 e

Jewny Wy "ys ‘Aepe JuewsH "ys ‘ybuis ‘d-y 'us ‘(esuso u))(03n

Bunenyo/049) elqweq ysexey "ys “Jewny uinysy "ys ‘iue|bng ey yejiL "ys ‘ewseys ysaley 'ys :(Bunns) jybry oy yo

goflagd wRIfcaa: & 9 1, IRaSTH wriiea wWa-, fafae g, avshme - 160003
Registered Office: Room No.1, Project Office Building, Civil Airport, Chandigarh-160003
wplaiRe prIfca: «E Rifas R <fiiqa, A, Aerh (JsTa) 160004
Corporate Office : New Civil Air Terminal, Jhurheri, Mohali (Punjab) 160004
Tel.No. 0172-2242002, Fax No. 0172-2242003, email:ceo@chial.org
CIN U63013CH2010G0I1031999



